
 

 
 
 

 
Agenda 
Planning Committee 
 

Wednesday 21 February 2024 at 5.00 pm 
in the Council Chamber, Sandwell Council House, Freeth Street, 

Oldbury, B69 3DB 
 

  
1   Apologies for Absence 

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

7 - 8 

 
2   Declarations of Interest 

 
Members to declare any interests in matters to be 
discussed at the meeting. 
 

9 - 10 

 
3   Minutes 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 10 
January 2024 as a correct record. 
 

11 - 18 

 
4   Planning Application - DC/23/68498 - 2A 

Franchise Street, Wednesbury, WS10 9RE 
 
Proposed change of use from existing residential 
dwelling to 2 apartments 1 no - 1 bed and 1 no - 2 
bed. Demolition of existing adjacent ancillary 
building and replace with 6 no - 2 bed apartments 
with associated car parking and amenity areas. 
 
 
 
 

19 - 38 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

5   Planning Application - DC/23/68797 - 41 
Warwick Road, Oldbury, B68 0NE 
 
Retention of outbuilding in rear garden (Re-
submission of refused planning permission 
DC/23/68475). 
 

39 - 50 

 
6   Planning Application - DC/23/68823 - Land To 

The Rear of 22 to 56 Francis Ward Close, West 
Bromwich 
 
Proposed 2 no. pair of semi-detached 3 bedroom 
houses, with associated parking and private 
amenity space/gardens, vehicle crossover to 
pavement, and access road. 
 

51 - 68 

 
7   Planning Application - DC/23/68927 - Land Off 

Titford Road/ To The Rear Of Asda 
Wolverhampton Road, Oldbury 
 
Proposed 60 No. residential dwellings with new 
access from Titford Road and associated works. 
 

69 - 106 

 
8   Proposed Site Visits 

 
To consider and note the planning applications to 
be visited by the Committee on 27 March 2024. 
 

107 - 116 

 
9   Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate 

 
To consider and note the Decisions of the 
Planning Inspectorate. 
 

117 - 124 

 
10   Applications Determined Under Delegated 

Powers 
 
To consider and note the Applications Determined 
Under Delegated Powers. 
 

125 - 154 

 

Page 2



 

Shokat Lal 
Chief Executive 
Sandwell Council House 
Freeth Street 
Oldbury 
West Midlands 
 
Distribution 
Councillor Millar (Chair) 
Councillors Chidley, Chapman, Fenton, J Giles, S Gill, Kaur, Kordala, Loan, 
Pall, Preece, N Singh, Tromans, Uppal, J Webb and Younis 
 
Contact: democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 3

mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk


 

Information about meetings in Sandwell 
 

 
 

If you are attending the meeting and require assistance to 
access the venue, please contact Democratic Services 
(democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk). 
 

 
 

If the fire alarm sounds, please follow the instructions of the 
officers present and leave the building by the nearest exit. 
 

 
 

Only people invited to speak at a meeting may do so.  
Everyone at the meeting is expected to be respectful and listen 
to the discussion. 

 
 

Agendas with reports with exempt information should be 
treated as private and confidential.  It is your responsibility to 
ensure that any such reports are kept secure.  After the 
meeting confidential papers should be disposed of in a secure 
way. 
 

 
 

This meeting may be recorded and broadcast on the Internet.  
If this is the case, it will be confirmed at the meeting and 
further information will be provided.  
 
 

 
 

You are allowed to use devices for the purposes of recording 
or reporting during the public session of the meeting.  When 
using your devices they must not disrupt the meeting – please 
ensure they are set to silent. 
 

 
 

Members who cannot attend the meeting should submit 
apologies by contacting Democratic Services 
(democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk) 
 

 

All agenda, reports, minutes for Sandwell Council’s meetings, 
councillor details and more are available from our website 

Page 4

mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk
https://sandwell.moderngov.co.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 
 

 
Apologies for Absence 

 

To receive any apologies for absence from the members of the Committee. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 
 

 
Declarations of Interest 

 

Members to declare any interests in matters to be discussed at the meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 

Minutes of 
Planning Committee 

 
Wednesday 10 January 2024 at 5.00pm 

in the Council Chamber, Sandwell Council House, Oldbury 
 

Present:  Councillor Millar (Chair); 
Councillors Chidley (Vice-Chair), Fenton, Kaur, Loan, N 
Singh, Pall, Preece, Tromans and Webb 

 
Officers: John Baker (Development Planning and Building Consultancy 

Manager); Alison Bishop (Development Planning Manager); 
Simon Chadwick (Development and Road Safety Manager); 
Andy Thorpe (Healthy Development and Building Control 
Lead); Rory Stracey (Solicitor); Connor Robinson (Democratic 
Services Officer) and Anthony Lloyd (Democratic Services 
Officer).  

 
 
1/24  Apologies for Absence 
  

Apologies of absence were received from Councillors Chapman, 
Fisher, S Gill, Kordala and Uppal 

 
 
2/24  Declarations of Interest 
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
3/24 Minutes 
 

Resolved that the minutes of the meeting held on 29 
November 2023 are approved as a correct record.  

 
 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

4/24 Planning Application DC/23/68497 - Retention of replacement 
boundary treatment, removal of external rear wall, single storey 
rear extension, and raising of existing roof height. 10 Jowetts 
Lane West Bromwich B71 2RA 

 
 The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 

highlighted to members that there were discrepancies between the 
published drawing plans and the actual design and therefore, 
minded members that a deferral of the item would be prudent to 
ensure that drawings were updated and confirmed as accurate 
before being re-considered by the Committee.  

 
Resolved that consideration of Planning Application 
DC/23/68497 (Retention of replacement boundary treatment, 
removal of external rear wall, single storey rear extension, and 
raising of existing roof height, 10 Jowetts Lane West 
Bromwich B71 2RA) is deferred to seek correct plans 
regarding works already carried out on site. 

 
 
5/24 Planning Application DC/23/68498 - Proposed change of use 

from existing residential dwelling to 2 apartments 1 no - 1 bed 
and 1 no - 2 bed.  Demolition of existing adjacent ancillary 
building and replace with 6 no - 2 bed apartments with 
associated car parking and amenity areas. 
2A Franchise Street, Wednesbury, WS10 9RE. 
 
An objector was present and addressed the Committee with the 
following concerns:- 

• technical drawings were inaccurate as they did not show that 
the front elevation had actually extended onto the objectors 
property; 

• the building was of historical significance to the area and was 
a former vicarage; 

• a covenant was in place that stated that the property in 
question would not be used for any other reason than that of a 
dwelling or two dwellings. 

 
 

Page 12



3 
 

 
The applicant was present and addressed the Committee with the 
following points:- 

• willing to address any concerns in relation to site plans; 

• no information could be sought that implied that the building 
was listed or a non-designated heritage property. 

 
The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
advised the Committee that title deeds and covenants were not a 
matter that the Committee could consider as the local planning 
authority. Any further legal concerns would need to be investigated 
by the applicants separately outside of the planning process.  
 

Resolved that consideration of Planning Application 
DC/23/68498 (Proposed change of use from existing 
residential dwelling to 2 apartments 1 no - 1 bed and 1 no - 2 
bed.  Demolition of existing adjacent ancillary building and 
replace with 6 no - 2 bed apartments with associated car 
parking and amenity areas. 2A Franchise Street, 
Wednesbury, WS10 9RE) is deferred pending a site visit by 
the Committee. 
 
 

6/23 Planning Application DC/23/68578 - Retention of outbuilding at 
rear for garden room, storage and gym. 180 Walsall Road West 
Bromwich B71 3LH. 

 
At its meeting on 29 November 2023 (Minute No 114/23 refers), the 
Committee resolved to attend a site visit before giving further 
consideration to the planning application. 
 
Councillors Chidley, Fenton, Loan, N Singh, Tromans, Millar and 
Webb declared that they had been lobbied by the applicant on the 
site visit. 
 
The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
advised members that the windows on the outside of the building 
were now obscure glazed. Photographs were also circulated to the 
Committee which had been presented by the objector. 
 

Page 13



4 
 

An objector was present and addressed the Committee. Issues with 
light pollution and speculation around land encroachment were 
raised by the objector along with issues over privacy and 
overlooking into neighbouring proprieties. 
 
In response, it was confirmed by the Development Planning and 
Building Consultancy Manager that no visible land encroachment 
had taken place. Members were also minded that if the building was 
to be lowered to under 2.5m in height, then the works could instead 
be completed via permitted developments rights.  
 
Members discussed the feasibility of a condition on the use of blinds 
on the property however, it was deemed that this condition would be 
difficult to enforce and therefore, on that basis, using it as a 
condition would not be viable. Members were also reminded that a 
building that was assigned as “residential” encompassed many 
activities. 
 
The objector had been notified that other legislation, such as 
environmental health laws, could be pursued if problems persisted. 

 
Resolved that, Planning Application DC/23/68578 (Retention 
of outbuilding at rear for garden room, storage and gym. 180 
Walsall Road West Bromwich B71 3LH.) is approved subject 
to conditions relating to the following:- 
 
i) Within 3 months of permission being granted the 

windows and doors located on the front elevation to be 
obscurely glazed and retained as such; and 
 

ii) The outbuilding is not to be occupied at any time other 
than for purposes ancillary to the residential use of the 
dwelling known as 180 Walsall Road 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



5 
 

7/23 Planning Application DC/23/68738 - Proposed single storey 
outbuilding to rear with associated excavation and retaining 
wall. 50 Chatsworth Avenue, Great Barr, Birmingham, B43 6QH. 
 
Councillors Chidley, Fenton, Loan, N Singh, Tromans, Millar and 
Webb declared that they had been lobbied by both the applicant 
and objector on the site visit. 
 

  Neither the applicant or objector was present at the meeting. 
 

The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
provided clarification on permitted development rights in relation to 
extensions to properties. It was noted that extensions and other 
buildings must not exceed 50% of the curtilage. The 50% limit 
covered all buildings so would also include existing and proposed 
outbuildings as well as any existing or proposed new extensions to 
a house. The extension that was considered on this planning 
application did not exceed the 50% limit. 
 
Members were also advised that any concerns around change of 
use could be dealt by planning enforcement as and when required. 
 

Resolved that Planning Application DC/23/68738 (Proposed 
single storey outbuilding to rear with associated excavation 
and retaining wall. 50 Chatsworth Avenue, Great Barr, 
Birmingham, B43 6QH) is approved, subject to conditions 
relating to:- 
 
i) External Materials; 

 
ii) The gymnasium shall be solely for the enjoyment of the 

residents of 50 Chatsworth Avenue and for no other 
purposes. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



6 
 

8/23 Planning Application DC/23/68797 - Retention of outbuilding in 
rear garden (Resubmission of refused planning permission 
DC/23/68475). 41 Warwick Road, Oldbury, B68 0NE. 

 
The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
highlighted to the Committee that the original report had incorrectly 
stated that the highways department had objected to the proposal. It 
was confirmed that no objections had been made by the highway 
department. The previous applicant had been refused due to 
insufficient information on the planned works or the building’s 
proposed use. 
 
No objectors were present for the meeting. 
 
The applicant was present and highlighted the following:- 

• the rear building would be used to accommodate a family 
member with autism; 

• the applicant was happy to consider any further conditions as 
required by the committee. 

 
Resolved that consideration of Planning Application 
DC/23/68797 (Retention of outbuilding in rear garden 
((Resubmission of refused planning permission 
DC/23/68475)). 41 Warwick Road, Oldbury, B68 0NE) is 
deferred pending a site visit by the Committee. 
 

 
9/23  Proposed Site Visits 
 

The Committee noted the site visits that would be carried out in 
relation to the following applications in addition to those agreed at 
the meeting, prior to it being presented to the Committee:- 

 

Application No. and 
Description. 

Reason 

DC/23/68823 Proposed 2 no. pair 
of semi-detached 3 bedroom 
houses, with associated parking 
and private amenity 

To review the site location 
in terms of highway safety 
due to the location of the 
application site and the 

Page 16



7 
 

space/gardens, vehicle crossover 
to pavement, and access road. At 
Land To The Rear Of 22 To 56 
Francis Ward Close West 
Bromwich 

proposed development’s 
relationship to existing 
residential properties 
(outlook/privacy/sunlight  
 

DC/23/68819 Demolition of former 
public house and proposed 
construction of 4 storey mixed-use 
building comprising of 2 No. 
ground floor retail units, 12 No. 
selfcontained apartments with first 
and third floor amenity areas with 
balustrades, plant room enclosure 
with acoustic timber fencing, 
boundary walls and railings, new 
access from Thornwood Close, 
parking, cycle store, 
refuse/recycling facilities and 
landscaping. At The Merrivale 
Vicarage Road Oldbury 

To review the context of 
the area in relation to the 
proposed development in 
terms of design, scale and 
massing and the retail 
element at ground floor. 

DC/23/68927 proposal of 60 
dwellings at Titford Road, Oldbury 

Application for 60 
dwellings which had 
attracted considerable 
local interest.  

 

 

10/23  Applications Determined Under Delegated Powers 
 

The Committee noted the applications determined under delegated 
powers by the Director – Regeneration and Growth, under powers 
delegated to him, as set out in the Council’s Constitution. 

 
(Meeting ended at 6.29pm) 

 
Contact: democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk  

Page 17

mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

21 February 2024 

 

Application Reference DC/23/68498 

Application Received 17 July 2023 

Application Description Proposed change of use from existing 

residential dwelling to 2 apartments 1 no - 1 

bed and 1 no - 2 bed.  Demolition of existing 

adjacent ancillary building and replace with 6 

no - 2 bed apartments with associated car 

parking and amenity areas. 

Application Address 2A Franchise Street, Wednesbury, WS10 9RE. 

Applicant Mr Asif c/o Lucci House, The Old Tennis 

Courts, Tennal Grove, Harborne, B32 2HP. 

Ward Wednesbury North.  

Contact Officer  Anjan Dey 

anjan_dey@sandwell.gov.uk  

 

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1   That planning permission is granted subject to conditions relating to: 

 

(i) External materials; 

(ii) Finished floor levels; 

(iii) Ground Contamination; 

(iv) Drainage (surface and foul); 

(v) Lighting; 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4

mailto:anjan_dey@sandwell.gov.uk


 

(vi) Boundary treatments; 

(vii) Landscaping; 

(viii) Cycle storage; 
(ix) Low NOx boilers; 

(x) Electric vehicle charging; 

(xi) Management plan for control of dust; 

(xii) Construction Management Plan; 

(xiii) Coal Authority Investigation,  

(xiv) Restriction on hours of construction; and 

(xv) Parking laid out & retention. 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal raises no significant concerns from a design, amenity or 

highway perspective and would deliver additional housing in a 

sustainable location. 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods – The proposal 
raises no significant concerns from a design, amenity or 
highway perspective and would deliver additional in a 
sustainable location.   

4 Context  

 

4.1    At the last meeting your Committee resolved to visit the site and details 

regarding land ownership and restrictive covenants were to be 

investigated.   Refer to section 13.4 and 13.5 which updates 

members in relation to these matters. 

 

4.2 The application is being reported to your committee as more than 3 

neighbour objections have been received.  

 

4.3 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

2A Franchise Street, Wednesbury.  

Page 20

https://www.google.com/maps/place/2+Franchise+St,+Wednesbury+WS10+9RE/@52.5647505,-2.0287889,414m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m6!3m5!1s0x487098fa7ae3e7ed:0xa99be31567069829!8m2!3d52.5647473!4d-2.026214!16s%2Fg%2F11s93xgv95?entry=ttu


 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is not allocated within the Development Plan. 

 

5.2 Material planning considerations (MPCs) are matters that can and 

should be taken into account when making planning decisions. By law, 

planning decisions should be made in accordance with the development 

plan unless MPCs indicate otherwise. This means that if enough MPCs 

weigh in favour of a development, it should be approved even if it 

conflicts with a local planning policy. 

 

5.3 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Planning history (including appeal decisions) 

Amenity concerns – Overlooking/loss of privacy, loss of light and/or 

outlook.  

Design concerns - appearance and materials, layout and density of 

building, and 

Highways considerations - Traffic generation, access, highway safety, 

parking and servicing. 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site is a rectangular shaped parcel of land to the side of 

2A Franchise Street, Wednesbury. The area is largely residential in 

character and Franchise Street consists of a variety of house types with 

industrial units along the street further to the east. The site is adjoined by 

allotment gardens to the south.  

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 There is no relevant planning history for the site.  

 
 

Page 21



 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 It is proposed to convert no 2A Franchise Street into two apartments, 

comprising of a one and two-bedroom units. An existing ancillary 

building is to be demolished to facilitate the construction of a new two 

storey apartment block at the western side of the site; to comprise six no 

two-bedroom apartments. The apartment block would be physically 

attached to no 2A Franchise Street at first floor level.  

 

8.2 Floor plans show that no 2A Franchise Street would have lounge and 

kitchens at ground floor level with bedrooms above. The new block 

would comprise of a central entrance hall with three apartments either 

side of the hall; totalling six apartments including roof level.  

 

8.3    Parking provision for the apartments would be at the rear and front of the 

site. Submitted plans show an under-croft arrangement with access from 

Franchise Street to a parking area showing six spaces at the rear of the 

site and two spaces at the front.  

 

8.4 Communal gardens/areas of amenity are shown at the rear of the site; 

two separate gardens – one at either side of the site each measuring 

over 50 square metres in area.   

 

8.5 Apartment sizes are comfortable, and the agent has confirmed that 

internal floorspace now complies with the Council’s adopted minimum 

standards, as well as National Described Standards for one and two- 

bedroom flats; 50 and 70 square metres respectively.  

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter (11 

in total) with five objections received from local residents.  

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

Page 22



 

 

i) Loss of light and privacy to properties along Franchise Street and 

Old Park Road; 

ii) Design and that the proposed new block is out of character with 

the locality and the proposals constitute over-development of the 

site;  

iii) 2A Franchise Street was a former Vicarage and therefore has 

historical value;   

iv) Insufficient parking and concerns relating to highway safety;  

v) The accuracy of the plans; specifically, that they include property 

not within the ownership of the applicant. 

 

These objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material 

considerations). 

          

         Non-material objections have been received relating to a restrictive legal 

covenant imposed by the Bishop of Lichfield.     

  

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Highways  

 

         Amended plans have been provided altering the proposed layout, as a 

result, highways has no objections to the proposal.  

 

10.2 Pollution Control (Air Quality)  

           

         No overall objections and the provision of a single electric vehicle 

charging point and of low NOx central heating boilers can be ensured by 

condition.   

 

         The control dust and emissions during the demolition and construction 

process can also be ensured by condition.                

  

 

 

Page 23



 

10.3 Pollution Control (Contaminated Land)  

 

         No objection subject to conditions relating to submission of desk-top 

study relating to on site contamination and the submission of a validation 

report. 

 

10.4 Pollution Control (Air Pollution and Noise)  

 

         No subject to the submission of a construction management plan and 

restriction on hours of construction. These matters are usually dealt with 

by way of pre-commencement condition.  

 

10.5 The Coal Authority  

 

         No overall objections subject to the submission of a scheme of intrusive 

investigations relating to coal mining legacy, and mitigation measures if 

required. The Coal Authority has recommended a suitable condition to 

deal with these matters.           

 

10.6  West Midlands Police   

 

         No objection.   

 

10.7  Walsall MBC 

 

         The site is close to the borough boundary with Walsall and that authority 

has been consulted but has declined to comment on the application.   

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

Page 24



 

11.2 The Framework refers to development adding to the overall quality of the 

area by achieving high quality design, achieving good architecture and 

layouts. 

 

11.3 The Framework promotes sustainable transport options for development 

proposal and paragraph 111 states that developments should be 

prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an 

unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 

impacts on the road network would be severe. 

 

11.4 I am of the opinion that the scheme is of a good design, in accordance 

with the design aspirations of the NPPF, as the development would 

assimilate with the overall form and layout of the site’s surroundings. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

DEL1: Infrastructure Provision 

HOU1: Delivery Sustainable Housing Growth 

HOU2: Housing Density type and Accessibility 

TRAN4: Creating Coherent Networks for Cycling and Walking 

ENV3: Design Quality  

ENV8: Air Quality  

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

SAD H2: Windfalls 

SAD DC6: Land Affected by Contamination, Ground Instability, Mining 

Legacy, Land of unsatisfactory Load Bearing Capacity or Other 

Constraints 

 

12.2 Infrastructure provision, in this case Electric Vehicle Charging bays, 

would be ensured by condition, in addition, the Community Infrastructure 

Levy applies (DEL1).  

 

12.3  The proposal meets the requirements of policy HOU2 in that it proposes 

a range of types and sizes of accommodation which would be accessible 

Page 25



 

by walking and sustainable transport to services. The proposal would 

also achieve good design with minimal amenity impact. 

 

12.4  Sufficient amenity space is provided to allow for cycle parking provision 

(TRAN4). 

 

12.5   ENV3 and SAD EOS9 refers to well-designed schemes that provide 

quality living environments. The proposal raises no significant concerns 

in respect of design and is therefore compliant with policy ENV3 and 

SAD EOS 9. 

 

12.6   In respect of air quality (ENV8), electric vehicle charging points and low 

NOx boilers can be ensured by condition. 

 

12.7  The proposed dwellings would be a windfall, subject to SAD H2. The 

proposal meets the requirement of the policy as it is previously un-

developed land, suitable for residential development, and capable of 

meeting other plan policies. 

 

12.8   The site has a history of coal mining legacy but the assessment and 

mitigation of coal mining workings (SAD DC6) can be ensured by 

condition.  

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

  

13.2 Amenity concerns  

 

 The site plans show that no 2A Franchise Street would only be extended 

at first floor level at its western side to provide a link to the new 

apartment block. The extension would be away from the adjoining 

property, and it is also considered that the rear elevation of no 2A 

already extends beyond that of the adjoining dwelling. However, the site 

Page 26



 

plan has been annotated to show that rear elevation complies with the 

45-degree code that is used for guidance.  

 

 With regards to loss of privacy, the interface distance between the rear 

elevation of properties along Old Park Road and the western side 

elevation of the apartment block is around 23 metres, which substantially 

exceeds the recommended 14 metres. Dormer windows facing 

Franchise Street would serve some of the flats in the roof space with 

only roof lights in the roof plane to Old Park Road. It is therefore my view 

that the apartment block would not result in any loss of privacy to the 

occupiers of those properties.  

  

13.3 Design concerns  

 

 Franchise Street is mainly characterised by terraced dwellings but also 

includes semi-detached and detached houses; dwellings vary in 

appearance and there is no uniform design code. By its nature an 

apartment block would differ from the existing house types but it is 

considered that the agent has considered the existing design code and 

tried to ensure that the appearance of the apartment block reflects that 

of no 2A Franchise Street – gable features, stone cills etc. It is noted that 

there is housing development further along Franchise Street that 

comprises of an apartment block at the corner with the junction.  

 

 Although 2A Franchise Street was a former vicarage the property is not a 

listed building, or within a Conservation Area. Furthermore, 2A is to be 

converted with minimal alterations or changes to its external 

appearance.  

 

 Apartment sizes are comfortable, and the agent has confirmed that 

internal floorspace now complies with the National Described Standards 

for one and two-bedroom flats.  

 

 The scale of the development would be two storeys, and the proposal 

would assimilate into the surrounding area. The following images shows 

the existing and proposed elevation to Franchise Street:   

Page 27



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

1. Street view along Franchise Street from west to east 

 

Page 28



 

 
 

2. Street view to Old Park Rd from Franchise Street 

 

 
 

3. Street view to apartment block at corner of Franchise Street and The 

Junction 

 

13.4 Highways concerns 

 

The development meets with the approval of the highway authority and 

parking spaces are in accordance with the requirements of Council 

design guidance. 

Page 29



 

 

13.4 Submitted plans 

 

 Following the last meeting the agent has confirmed that the submitted 

plans do include a small part of no 2 Franchise Street. The agent has 

now corrected the red outline boundary and amended all relevant plans. 

Copies of the revised drawings have been sent to the adjoining 

neighbour without further response.  

 

13.5  Legal covenant (Non-material) 

 

 This matter is a private one and isn’t material to the decision. The agent 

also understands that his client may have a legal obligation to send the 

copies of the plans to the Bishop’s office, but this is ultimately a private 

matter as stated (the covenant also refers to the dwelling house not 

being used as drinking establishment or ‘amusement hotel tavern Inn’).  

 

 However, the Bishop of Lichfield has been consulted by the planning 

department on the application without response. The agent has advised 

that his client has met with his solicitor and intends to progress this 

pending the planning decision.  

 

14. Conclusion and planning balance 

 

14.1 All decisions on planning applications should be based on an objective 

balancing exercise. This is known as applying the “planning balance”. 

It is established by law that planning applications should be refused if 

they conflict with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. This essentially means that the positive impacts of a 

development should be balanced against its negative impacts. 

  

14.2 On balance the proposal accords with the provisions of relevant 

development plan policies and there are no significant material 

considerations which warrant refusal that could not be controlled by 

conditions. 

Page 30



 

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant policies and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.  

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

 

17. Appendices 

 

 Location plan SAP FS 22 05 LP 01  

 Amended site plan inc. parking SAP FS 23 03 GA 01 REV D 

         Proposed elevations SAP FS 23 03 GA 04 REV A 

Page 31



 

         Proposed rear elevation SAP FS 23 03 GA 05 

         Proposed floor plans SAP FS 23 03 GA 06 REV B     

         Proposed floor plans SAP FS 23 03 GA 07 REV A  

Page 32



P
age 33



P
age 34



P
age 35



P
age 36



P
age 37



P
age 38



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

21 February 2024 

 

Application Reference DC/23/68797 

Application Received 25 October 2023 

Application Description Retention of outbuilding in rear garden (Re-

submission of refused planning permission 

DC/23/68475). 

Application Address 41 Warwick Road, Oldbury, B68 0NE 

Applicant Mr Enver Bajrami 

Ward Old Warley 

Contact Officer Lucinda McKee 

lucinda_mckee@sandwell.gov.uk 

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That planning permission is granted subject to conditions relating to: 
 
i) Use to remain ancillary to the occupants of 41 Warwick Road. 

 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The outbuilding is acceptable for retention as it has no significant impact 

on the amenity of surrounding residents and the design and scale 

assimilates into the surrounding area. Furthermore, the vehicular access 

is existing and therefore its presence cannot be factored into the 

suitability of the outbuilding. 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods 

4 Context  

 

4.1 At its last meeting the committee resolved to visit the site.  

 

4.2 The application is being reported to your committee as three objections 

have been received. 

 

4.3 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

41 Warwick Road, Oldbury, B68 0NE 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is not allocated within the Development Plan. 

 

5.2 Material planning considerations (MPCs) are matters that can and 

should be taken into account when making planning decisions. By law, 

planning decisions should be made in accordance with the development 

plan unless MPCs indicate otherwise. This means that if enough MPCs 

weigh in favour of a development, it should be approved even if it 

conflicts with a local planning policy. 

 

5.3 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Amenity concerns – Overlooking/loss of privacy, loss of light and/or 

outlook. 

Page 40

https://www.google.com/maps/place/41+Warwick+Rd,+Oldbury+B68+0NE/@52.4669573,-1.9921827,517m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m6!3m5!1s0x4870962e8163174f:0xe74775f23d5b2a4!8m2!3d52.4669573!4d-1.9896078!16s%2Fg%2F11c1zws9r1?entry=ttu


 

Design concerns - appearance and materials, layout and density of 

building and wider visual amenity  

Highways considerations - access 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application relates to a semi-detached property situated on the north 

east side of Warwick Road, Oldbury.  The character of the surrounding 

area is residential. 

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 A previous application for retention of the outbuilding was refused.  The 

reasons for refusal were that insufficient information had been provided 

in the application form with regards to the property owner, and access 

could not be gained by officers into the outbuilding to make a full 

determination.  The ownership of the property has now been clarified 

and the outbuilding was accessed by officers on 12 December 2023. 

 

7.2  Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

DC/23/68475 Retention of outbuilding in 

rear garden. 

Refused 18.09.2023 

 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The application is for the retention of an outbuilding in the rear garden.  

The outbuilding measures 7.5 metres in length, 8.2 metres in width and 

4 metres in height at normal ground level/4.7 metres into lowered 

ground. 

 

8.2  The outbuilding consists of two floors.  Whilst the submitted plans show 

that the use is as a gym at ground floor and games room at first floor, the 

site visit revealed that the ground floor contains a kitchen/living area and 

shower room with a vacant but carpeted first floor room served by 

skylights. 

Page 41



 

 

8.3 Officers accessed the outbuilding through the main dwelling but there is 

an existing vehicular access to the rear garden with one parking space.  

The rear access serves several properties along Wolverhampton Road. 

 

8.4 Amended plans have been received which seek to clarify the use of the 

outbuilding. A gym/shower room/kitchenette is now shown at ground 

floor with a games room at first floor. 

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by 10 neighbour notification letters.  

Three objections and two representations of support have been 

received.  

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) Loss of light, privacy and outlook; 

ii) Design; 

iii) Access – including emergency vehicles; 

iv) Use; and 

v) Loss of trees. 

 

These objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material 

considerations). 

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Highways 

 

Highways have stated that the parking provision should comply with the 

Council’s design guidance and the use of the outbuilding should be 

ancillary to the dwelling. Parking and access are discussed further under 

‘Material Considerations’. 

Page 42



 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

11.2 Paragraph 111 states that developments should only be prevented or 

refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact 

on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road 

network would be severe. This is not the case with this application. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

ENV3: Design Quality  

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

 

12.2 ENV3 and SAD EOS9 refers to well-designed schemes that provide 

quality living environments. The proposed layout and design are 

discussed under material considerations.  

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2 Amenity concerns – Overlooking/loss of privacy, loss of light 

and/or outlook 

 

 It is important to note that the rear garden has been excavated to keep 

the building as low as possible; mindful that it is a two-storey structure.  

This results in a lowered land level by approximately 700 mm on the 

area that the outbuilding occupies.  As such, the impact of the massing 

and scale is limited.  There are no windows in elevations facing 

Page 43



 

southwest or northeast; and only skylights at first floor, which are difficult 

to look out of when in the loft space as they are waist height when 

standing.  Furthermore, properties along Wolverhampton Road are at a 

higher land level, the separation distance to the closest property is 27 

metres and the property to the south has its rear elevation at an obscure 

angle so occupiers do not directly look onto the building.  Occupiers of 

the attached neighbouring property would clearly see the upper part of 

the outbuilding, but the rear aspect of that property does not directly 

overlook it. 

 

13.3 Design concerns - appearance and materials, layout and density of 

building and wider visual amenity 

 

 As stated above, the impact of the height of the outbuilding has been 

lessened due to the land level change.  The plot is large enough to 

accommodate the outbuilding and, as it is not visible from the street, the 

impact on wider visual amenity is not significant. 

 

13.4  Highway considerations – access 

 

 Whilst Highways have raised no concerns, the matters they have raised 

were considered during the site visit. The property already has a 

vehicular right of access to the rear and, consequently, I have no 

significant concerns from an access or highway safety perspective. 

Whilst the access does serve the rear of several properties, it does not 

appear to be well-used and visibility on to the main road is good. 

Highways also raise concerns over access for emergency service 

vehicles. Manual for Streets (the Government’s guidance on street 

design) states that ‘the requirements for emergency vehicles are 

generally dictated by the fire service requirements’. Paragraph 6.7.3 

goes on to state ‘Simply to reach a fire, the access route could be 

reduced to 2.75 m over short distances, provided the pump appliance 

can get to within 45 m of dwelling entrances’. The accessway is 

approximately 3.5 metres wide and the distance from the rear boundary 

of the property to the footpath is approximately 45 metres.  Furthermore, 

access for the fire service is a requirement of building regulations and I 

Page 44



 

see no reason to impose conditions which would replicate requirements 

under that legislation. 

 

13.5 In respect of parking requirements, the property is a three bed, with the 

outbuilding having the potential to make this four. Two parking spaces 

are evident at the property; one to the front and one to the rear, which 

complies with the Council’s design guidance. Additionally, with reference 

to the NPPF, I do not anticipate any highway impact to be severe based 

on the above assessment. 

 

13.6  Other matters – use of outbuilding and loss of trees 

 

 The plans show that the use of the outbuilding is ancillary to the main 

house.  It is a matter of law that the creation of a separate dwellinghouse 

requires planning permission and any application for a separate unit 

would need to comply with the relevant design guidance. Discussing the 

meaning of ‘ancillary’ further, this application concerns the retention of 

an outbuilding. Ancillary in this context means that the outbuilding would 

have to have a purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the main house. 

Nonetheless, the outbuilding could be used as additional residential 

accommodation in association with the main house. However, the use of 

the outbuilding by persons who are not part of the household and/or live 

independently of the main house would constitute an unauthorised use. 

Continued ancillary use of the outbuilding can be ensured by condition. 

In the event that the outbuilding is used as separate accommodation, 

where it can be demonstrated that a standalone C3 dwellinghouse use 

has commenced, enforcement action can be taken.  

 

13.7 In respect of the loss of the trees, the trees did not warrant specific 

protection and the owner is entitled to remove them from their own land. 

 

14. Conclusion and planning balance 

 

14.1 All decisions on planning applications should be based on an objective 

balancing exercise. This is known as applying the “planning balance”. 

Page 45



 

It is established by law that planning applications should be refused if 

they conflict with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. This essentially means that the positive impacts of a 

development should be balanced against its negative impacts. 

  

14.2 On balance the proposal accords with the provisions of relevant 

development plan policies and there are no significant material 

considerations which warrant refusal that could not be controlled by 

conditions. 

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant polices and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.  

 

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 

Page 46



 

emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

 

17. Appendices 

 

 Context plan 

 GD2538/02  

 GD2538/03 A 

 

Page 47



41

co
n

tr
ac

t
G

D
D
es

ig
ns

A
rc

hi
te

ct
u

ra
l S

er
vi

ce
s

4
9
, 

T
h
e 

C
re

sc
en

t,
C

ra
d
le

y
 H

ea
th

,
W

es
t 

M
id

la
n
d
s.

B
6
4
 7

JS
T

el
 0

1
2
1
 6

0
2

 6
2
3
3

M
o
b
 0

7
9

3
9
 4

3
6

5
5
7

cl
ie

n
t

sc
a

le

d
at

e

d
ra

w
in

g
 n

o

d
ra

w
in

g

WARWICK ROAD

0 25 50 75 100 125m

LOCATION PLAN Scale 1:1250

P
age 48



0 10 20 30 40 50m

WARWICK ROAD

Ancillary

Building

co
n

tr
a

ct
G

D
D
es

ig
ns

A
rc

h
it

ec
tu

ra
l S

er
vi

ce
s

4
9
, 

T
h
e 

C
re

sc
en

t,
C

ra
d
le

y
 H

ea
th

,
W

es
t 

M
id

la
n
d
s.

B
6
4
 7

JS
T

el
 0

1
2
1
 6

0
2
 6

2
3
3

M
o
b
 0

7
9

3
9
 4

3
6

5
5
7

cl
ie

n
t

sc
a

le

d
at

e

d
ra

w
in

g
 n

o

d
ra

w
in

g

BLOCK PLAN Scale 1:500

41

P
age 49



4
0

0
0

3
9

0
0

GDDesigns
Architectural Services

49, The Crescent,
Cradley Heath,
West Midlands.
B64 7JS
Tel 
Mob 

plot cad lines

drawn by

drawing

rev

contract

client

scale date

drawing no
As Built Ground Floor Plan As Built Roof Space Plan

Front Elevation Side Elevation Rear Elevation Side Elevation

Cross Section

Interlocking Concrete

Roof Tiles

Roof Lights

Facing Brickwork

Upvc Windows

2
2

1
0

Lobby

Gym

Shower

Games

Room

Games

Room

Gym

1:50 1 2 3 4 5m

1:100 2 4 6 8 10m

P
age 50



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

21 February 2024 

 

Application Reference DC/23/68823 

Application Received 03 November 2023 

Application Description Proposed 2 no. pair of semi-detached 3 

bedroom houses, with associated parking and 

private amenity space/gardens, vehicle 

crossover to pavement, and access road. 

Application Address Land To The Rear Of 22 To 56 Francis Ward 

Close, West Bromwich. 

Applicant Mr Paul Rees, Harper Sperring, The Old 

School, St Johns Road, Dudley, DY2 7JT.  

Ward Wednesbury South. 

Contact Officer  Anjan Dey 

anjan_dey@sandwell.gov.uk  

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That planning permission is granted subject to conditions relating to: 

 

(i) External materials; 

(ii) Ground Contamination;  

(iii) Drainage (surface and foul); 

(iv) Boundary treatments; 

(v) Landscaping; 

(vi) Cycle storage; 
(vii) Low NOx boilers;  

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6

mailto:anjan_dey@sandwell.gov.uk


 

(viii) Electric vehicle charging; 

(ix) Management plan for control of dust;  

(x) Construction Management Plan;  

(xi) Restriction on hours of construction; and 

(xii) Parking laid out & retention. 

 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal raises no significant concerns from a design, amenity or 

highway perspective and would deliver additional housing in a 

sustainable location. 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods – The proposal 
raises no significant concerns from a design, amenity or 
highway perspective and would deliver additional in a 
sustainable location.   

4 Context  

 

4.1    At your last meeting members resolved to the visit the site. 

 

4.2 The application is being reported to your committee as more than 3 

neighbour objections have been received.  

 

4.3 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

         Land adjacent to 22 to 56 Francis Ward Close, West Bromwich  

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is not allocated within the Development Plan. 

 

Page 52

https://www.google.com/maps/place/22+Francis+Ward+Cl,+West+Bromwich+B71+2PZ/@52.543207,-2.0162048,675m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m6!3m5!1s0x4870984245f2b22b:0xf3d7f42586d69efd!8m2!3d52.5432038!4d-2.0136299!16s%2Fg%2F11c4rw8rsg?entry=ttu


 

5.2 Material planning considerations (MPCs) are matters that can and 

should be taken into account when making planning decisions. By law, 

planning decisions should be made in accordance with the development 

plan unless MPCs indicate otherwise. This means that if enough MPCs 

weigh in favour of a development, it should be approved even if it 

conflicts with a local planning policy. 

 

5.3 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Amenity concerns – Overlooking/loss of privacy, loss of light and/or 

outlook. 

Noise nuisance – additional properties/construction  

Environmental concerns – Loss of play space 

Design concerns - appearance and materials, layout and density of 

building, and 

Highways considerations - Traffic generation, access, highway safety, 

parking and servicing. 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site is an irregular shaped piece of land that is to the rear 

of 22 to 56 Francis Ward Close, West Bromwich.  The area is largely 

residential in character and the land is bounded by residential properties 

to the north and south-east with residential properties on the other side 

of Hollowbank to the south. There is a difference in levels across the site 

with land levels falling towards Holloway Bank, and also from southern 

part of the land to the north. There is a small electricity sub-station in situ 

adjacent at the north-eastern part of the site.  

 

 6.2 Access to this site is currently unrestricted although the land is privately 

owned.  

 

 

 

Page 53



 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 There is no relevant planning history for the site.  
 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 It is proposed to construct two pairs of three-bedroom semi-detached 

dwellings with associated parking and private amenity space/gardens. A 

new vehicle access road is also to be created from Holloway Bank to 

frontage parking spaces.  

 

8.2    Parking provision for the dwellings would be at the front of each pair of 

semis with vehicle crossings provided to pavements.  Submitted plans 

show two car parking spaces for each of the houses.  

 

8.3 Private gardens are shown at the rear of each of the proposed dwellings 

with bin and cycle storage area within each individual plot within the 

private gardens.  

 

8.4 House sizes are comfortable, with internal floorspace that complies with 

the Council’s adopted minimum standard of 80 square metres, as well as 

National Described Standards for new two storey, three-bedroom 

dwellings.  

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter (28 

in total) with ten objections received from local residents.  

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) Loss of light, outlook and privacy to surrounding properties along 

Francis Ward Close.  

ii) Concerns relating to increased traffic and highway safety. 

iii) The dwellings would result in noise disturbance to neighbours;  

Page 54



 

iv) The development would result in a loss of play space;  

v) The proposal would affect the environment.   

 

These objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material 

considerations). 

          

         Non-material objections have been received relating to devaluation of 

neighbouring properties.  

  

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Highways  

 

         Highways has no objections to the proposal subject to the parking layout 

being laid out as shown and dropped kerbs being provided.  

 

10.2 Pollution Control (Air Quality)  

           

         No overall objections and the provision of a single electric vehicle 

charging point and of low NOx central heating boilers can be ensured by 

condition.   

 

         The control dust and emissions during the construction process can also 

be ensured by condition.                

 

 10.3 Pollution Control (Contaminated Land)  

 

         No objection subject to conditions relating to submission of desk-top 

study relating to on site contamination and also the submission of a 

validation report. 

 

10.4 Pollution Control (Air Pollution and Noise)  

 

          At the time of writing comments are yet to be received. It is likely that a 

construction management plan would have to be submitted to the 

Page 55



 

planning authority prior to commencement of development. This can be 

ensured by condition.   

 

10.5 The Canal & Rivers Trust 

 

         Has no comment to make on the proposal.            

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

11.2 The Framework refers to development adding to the overall quality of the 

area by achieving high quality design, achieving good architecture and 

layouts. 

 

11.3 The Framework promotes sustainable transport options for development 

proposal and paragraph 111 states that developments should be 

prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an 

unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 

impacts on the road network would be severe. 

 

11.4 I am of the opinion that the scheme is of a good design, in accordance 

with the design aspirations of the NPPF, as the development would 

assimilate with the overall form and layout of the site’s surroundings. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

DEL1: Infrastructure Provision 

HOU1: Delivery Sustainable Housing Growth 

HOU2: Housing Density type and Accessibility 

TRAN4: Creating Coherent Networks for Cycling and Walking 

ENV3: Design Quality  

Page 56



 

ENV8: Air Quality  

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

SAD H2: Windfalls 

SAD DC6: Land Affected by Contamination, Ground Instability, Mining 

Legacy, Land of unsatisfactory Load Bearing Capacity or Other 

Constraints 

 

12.2 Infrastructure provision, in this case may be Electric Vehicle Charging 

points on the recommendation of the Public Health (Air Quality) team, 

would be ensured by condition.  In addition, the Community 

Infrastructure Levy applies (DEL1).  

 

12.3  The proposal meets the requirements of policy HOU2 in that it proposes 

a range of types and sizes of accommodation which would be accessible 

by walking and sustainable transport to services. The proposal would 

also achieve good design with minimal amenity impact. 

 

12.4  Sufficient amenity space is provided to allow for cycle parking provision 

(TRAN4). 

 

12.5   ENV3 and SAD EOS9 refers to well-designed schemes that provide 

quality living environments. The proposal raises no significant concerns 

in respect of design and is therefore compliant with policy ENV3 and 

SAD EOS 9. 

 

12.6    In respect of air quality (ENV8), electric vehicle charging points and low 

NOx boilers can be ensured by condition. Again, this would be at the 

recommendation of the Air Quality Team (Public Health).  

 

12.7    The proposed dwellings would be a windfall, subject to SAD H2. The 

proposal meets the requirement of the policy as it is previously un-

developed land, suitable for residential development, and capable of 

meeting other plan policies. 

 

 

 

Page 57



 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2 Amenity concerns  

 

 With regards to loss of light, outlook and privacy, the interface distance 

between the rear elevation of properties along the north-eastern part of 

Francis Ward Close, & the proposed rear elevations of plots 3 & 4 are a 

minimum of 21 metres. This complies with the recommended 21 metres 

to ensure against significant loss of outlook and privacy.  

 

 It is noted that existing properties to the north of site are at a lower level 

but the interface distance between the front elevations of existing 

flanking properties, and proposed side elevations of the new dwellings is 

14 metres (plus). The authority’s Residential Design SPD recommends a 

rear elevation to side interface distance of 14 metres, and although a 

minimum is not specified between front and side elevations, 14 metres is 

generally considered to be satisfactory to ensure against appreciable 

loss of outlook and privacy. Furthermore, windows in the proposed side 

elevations are to serve landing areas, and revised plans have been 

submitted to show smaller landing windows than originally proposed.    

 

 Notwithstanding level differences across the site, having considered that 

development meets the authority’s adopted interface standards, it is my 

view that the proposal would not result in any in significant loss of light, 

outlook or privacy to neighbouring properties. 

 

13.3 Noise Nuisance  

 

 With regards to noise, the new dwellings would be subject Building 

Regulations approval, so they would be subject to noise insulation 

measures. Rear gardens would be enclosed with new fencing but it’s not 

unreasonable to expect a degree of noise from the gardens given that 

Page 58



 

the these will be family dwellings, however this is unlikely be any more 

than the noise generated by local residents who have used the land for 

recreation purposes over the years.   

 

 Noise disturbance during the construction process can be controlled by 

appropriate conditions, for example by a restriction on hours of 

construction and submission of construction management plan for the 

approval by the planning department.   

 

13.4 Loss of play space/environment concerns 

 

The land is unallocated in the Council’s Development Plan, and is 

classed as a ‘windfall site’, as it has not been developed previously. It is 

understood that local residents have historically enjoyed the use of the 

land for recreation purposes; dog walking, children playing games etc. 

but the site is privately owned and is not subject to any restrictive open 

space or wildlife policies. This had previously been confirmed by 

colleagues in Planning Policy prior to submission.  

 

 Although it is appreciated that local residents have used the land for their 

own enjoyment over the years, it is noted that this has been allowed by 

the land owner who could have restricted access to this privately-owned 

site; for example, by fencing off the site. Therefore, the informal historical 

use of the site, should not preclude the site coming forward for 

development.  

 

13.5  Design concerns 

 

Francis Ward Close is characterised by semi-detached properties and in 

this respect the proposed dwellings are in keeping with the context of the 

immediate locality.  

 

Design of the proposed dwellings would be in keeping with adjacent 

properties and they would be of brick construction. However, their 

satisfactory appearance can be ensured by the approval of external 

materials; brick and roof tile as well as fenestration details. The 

Page 59



 

proposed family dwellings are in accordance with the requirements of 

the Councils design guidance and are considered to comply with related 

policies ENV3 (Design Quality) & EOS9 (Urban Design Principles).  

  

13.6 Highways concerns 

 

 The development meets with the approval of the highway authority and 

parking spaces are in accordance with the requirements of Council 

design guidance. All parking for the residential properties will be within 

the curtilage of the site including visitor provision. 

 

With regards to highway safety risk, Highways has confirmed that the 

appropriate visibility splays out of the proposed vehicular access can be 

achieved, and vehicles will be able to leave in a forward gear.  The trip 

rates linked to 4 no residential dwellings will be low and therefore the risk 

of the increase in injury accidents at this location is low. Furthermore, 

Highways has also confirmed that there has only been one serious 

accident near to this location in this past five years.    

          

14. Conclusion and planning balance 

 

14.1 All decisions on planning applications should be based on an objective 

balancing exercise. This is known as applying the “planning balance”. 

It is established by law that planning applications should be refused if 

they conflict with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. This essentially means that the positive impacts of a 

development should be balanced against its negative impacts. 

  

14.2 On balance the proposal accords with the provisions of relevant 

development plan policies and there are no significant material 

considerations which warrant refusal that could not be controlled by 

conditions. 

 

 

Page 60



 

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant policies and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.  

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

 

17. Appendices 

 

  Location plan 2472/D01 

          Proposed site plan inc. finished floor levels 2472/D03 REV A  

          Proposed floor plans & elevation 2472/D05 REV A  

Page 61



 

          Proposed floor plans & elevations 2472/D06 REV A   

          Existing & proposed longitudinal sections 2474 D07 

Page 62



CLIENT

JOB

TITLE

Scale Date

NUMBER

REVISIONS

Date Description

Figured dimensions only to be taken

from this drawing.

CAD 2474-200   Rev 0

MR J GOODSELL

KINGSWINFORD

WEST MIDLANDS

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

ADJ. FRANCIS WARD CLOSE

WEST BROMWICH

Group A

OCT '23

REVISION  2472/D01

Harper
Sperring

Chartered  Architects

The Old School, St. Johns Road, Dudley, DY2 7JT

Tel. 01384 252622

SITE LOCATION PLAN

& RIGHTS OF WAY PLAN

SITE LOCATION PLAN (1:1250) RIGHTS OF WAY PLAN (N.T.S.)

1:1250 @ A3

P
age 63



F
rancis W

ard C
lose

WALL NOT SURVEYED AT GROUND LEVEL

Holloway Bank

brick wall

S
LO

W

B
U

S
S
T
O

P

CLIENT

JOB

TITLE

Scale  1:200 @ A1

CAD 2474-202   Rev 2

MR J GOODSELL

KINGSWINFORD

WEST MIDLANDS

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

ADJ. FRANCIS WARD CLOSE,

WEST BROMWICH

Harper
Sperring

Chartered  Architects

The Old School, St. Johns Road, Dudley, DY2 7JT

Tel. 01384 252622

SITE PLAN:

AS PROPOSED

NUMBER 2474/D03 REVISION 

Date  JUN '23

GROUP A

REVISIONS

Date Description

Figured dimensions only to be taken from

this drawing.

P
age 64



EXISTING DWELLINGSNEW ACCESS ROAD
NEW

PATHWAY

NEW

PATHWAY

PLOT 1

PARKING
PLOT 1

PLOT 3

PARKING
PLOT 3

VACANT SITE EXISTING DWELLINGS

LONGITUDINAL SITE SECTIONS:

AS EXISTING & PROPOSED

2474/D07 REVISION

MR J GOODSELL

KINGSWINFORD

WEST MIDLANDS

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AT

FRANCIS WARD CLOSE,

WEST BROMWICH

CAD 2474-206   Rev 0

1:200 @ A2

REVISIONS

Date Description

Figured dimensions only to be taken from

this drawing.

GROUP A

JAN '24

CLIENT

JOB

TITLE

DateScale

NUMBER

Harper
Sperring

Chartered  Architects

The Old School, St. Johns Road, Dudley, DY2 7JT

Tel. 01384 252622

P
age 65



GROUND FLOOR PLAN (1:50)

FIRST FLOOR PLAN (1:50)

FRONT ELEVATION (1:50)
NEW DWELLINGS (PLOTS 1 & 2)

FLOOR PLANS & ELEVATIONS:

AS PROPOSED

NUMBER 2474/D05 REVISION A

Date  JUN '23

GROUP A

25/01/24 Window to side elevations reduced

in height

A

Harper
Sperring

Chartered  Architects

The Old School, St. Johns Road, Dudley, DY2 7JT

Tel. 01384 252622

CLIENT

JOB

TITLE

Scale  1:50/100 @ A1

CAD 2474-204   Rev 3

MR J GOODSELL

KINGSWINFORD

WEST MIDLANDS

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 

ADJ. FRANCIS WARD CLOSE,

WEST BROMWICH

REVISIONS

Date Description

Figured dimensions only to be taken from

this drawing.

REAR ELEVATION (1:100)

SIDE ELEVATION (1:100) SIDE ELEVATION (1:100)

P
age 66



GROUND FLOOR PLAN (1:50)

FIRST FLOOR PLAN (1:50)

FRONT ELEVATION (1:50)
NEW DWELLINGS (PLOTS 3 & 4)

FLOOR PLANS & ELEVATIONS:

AS PROPOSED

NUMBER 2474/D06 REVISION A

Date  OCT '23

GROUP A

25/01/24 Window to side elevations reduced 

in height.

A

Harper
Sperring

Chartered  Architects

The Old School, St. Johns Road, Dudley, DY2 7JT

Tel. 01384 252622

CLIENT

JOB

TITLE

Scale  1:50/100 @ A1

CAD 2474-205   Rev 1

MR J GOODSELL

KINGSWINFORD

WEST MIDLANDS

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 

ADJ. FRANCIS WARD CLOSE,

WEST BROMWICH

REVISIONS

Date Description

Figured dimensions only to be taken from

this drawing.

REAR ELEVATION (1:100)

SIDE ELEVATION (1:100) SIDE ELEVATION (1:100)

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

21 February 2024 

 

Application Reference DC/23/68927 

Application Received 2 December 2023 

Application Description Proposed 60 No. residential dwellings with new 

access from Titford Road and associated 

works. 

Application Address Land Off Titford Road/ 

To The Rear Of Asda 

Wolverhampton Road 

Oldbury 

Applicant Countryside Partnerships, Asda and McLagan 

Investments Ltd 

Ward Langley 

Contact Officer Carl Mercer 

carl_mercer@sandwell.gov.uk  

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That planning permission is granted subject to final comments from the 

Environment Agency, the signing of a section 106 agreement to ensure 

affordable housing, approval at Council and conditions relating to: 

 

(i) External materials; 
(ii) Contamination; 
(iii) Landscaping (to include ecology mitigation); 

 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



 

 

(iv) Boundary treatments; 
(v) Further surface water drainage detail; 
(vi) Further foul water drainage detail; 
(vii) Submission of energy assessment and compliance with its 

recommendations; 
(viii) Further evaluation/mitigation of impact on areas of Potential Site of 

Importance (PSI); 
(ix) Implementation of mitigation (MM1 - MM12 and EE1 - EE8) as 

identified in the submitted Ecology Appraisal; 
(x) A scheme to limit the spread of Japanese knotweed along the 

watercourse; 
(xi) Additional air quality modelling and requisite mitigation if required; 
(xii) Further details and installation of glazing, ventilation and acoustic 

fence as recommended by the noise report; 
(xiii) Lighting scheme; 
(xiv) Cycle parking for flats; 
(xv) Electric vehicle charging; 
(xvi) Low NOx boilers; 
(xvii) Construction environmental management plan (CEMP) to include 

working hours and ecology; 
(xviii) Employment and skills plan;  
(xix) Removal of permitted development rights for 

extensions/enlargements; and 
(xx) Provision and retention of parking. 

 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The application proposes an appropriate reuse of brownfield land which 

would deliver a much-needed mix of affordable housing. The potential 

for any significant impact on the amenity of the local area and ecology 

would be addressed by appropriate mitigation. 

 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods – The design of 

the proposal is acceptable in respect of national and local 

planning policy. 

Page 70



 

 

4. Context  

 

4.1 The application is being reported to your Planning Committee as 28 
objections have been received and the proposal constitutes a departure 
from the development plan land allocation. 
 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 
below: 

 

Land off Titford Road, Oldbury 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 Material planning considerations (MPCs) are matters that can and 

should be taken into account when making planning decisions. By law, 

planning decisions should be made in accordance with the development 

plan unless MPCs indicate otherwise. This means that if enough MPCs 

weigh in favour of a development, it should be approved even if it 

conflicts with a local planning policy. 

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are: 

 

Government policy (NPPF); 

Proposals in the development plan; 

Highway considerations - traffic generation, access, and highway safety; 

Environmental concerns – air quality and pollution; 

Ecology concerns – loss of wildlife, habitats and trees; 

Flood risk; 

Contamination;  

Anti-social behaviour; and 

‘Presumption’ and the ‘tilted balance’. 

 

 

 

 

Page 71

https://www.google.com/maps/place/Titford+Rd,+Oldbury/@52.4908488,-2.0176817,203m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m6!3m5!1s0x487097bceae03c37:0x4f2fbfcaf3304a79!8m2!3d52.4894263!4d-2.0173116!16s%2Fg%2F1tfc1g23?entry=ttu
https://www.google.com/maps/place/Titford+Rd,+Oldbury/@52.4908488,-2.0176817,203m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m6!3m5!1s0x487097bceae03c37:0x4f2fbfcaf3304a79!8m2!3d52.4894263!4d-2.0173116!16s%2Fg%2F1tfc1g23?entry=ttu


 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The site is a 1.92ha parcel of land covered within dense vegetation and 

trees situated northwest of Titford Road. The site is bound by an Asda 

supermarket to the west, with its car park adjoining the application site to 

the northwest and Langley Primary School to the east. The site backs on 

to residential gardens of properties along Titford Road, which comprise 

of a mix of terrace and detached two storey houses. 

 

6.2 What is proposed to be the site access from Titford Road is currently 

fenced off. This access is between 131 and 137 Titford Road. 

 

6.3 The site is identified as a wildlife corridor and Local Employment Land in 

the Council’s Development Plan (refer to Fig 1).  

 

 Fig 1 – The approximate outline of the development site is shown in 

red; the wildlife corridor in hatched grey and the employment land 

in blue 

 

  
  

Page 72



 

 

6.4 In respect of ecology, the site includes scrub, tall ruderal, recolonising 

ground, rough grassland and hardstanding. The proposal would retain 

the watercourse and an area of woodland. 

 

6.5 The Environment Agency’s planning flood map indicates that the site is 

partially located in Flood Zone 2 associated with River Tame (classified 

as a main river) which runs from northeast to southwest at the north of 

the site (refer to Fig 2). 

 

 Fig 2 – Environment Agency flood map showing Flood Zone 2 and 

‘main river’ 

 

 
 

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 The most recent planning history for the site involves an application for 

two commercial units which was refused due to concerns over traffic 

generation (the access was then proposed from the Asda site) and 

outlook and noise impact on residents of Titford Road. 

 

7.2 An earlier application for car parking associated with the Asda store was 

refused as it was not compliant with the employment allocation. 

Page 73



 

 

7.3 The relevant history is as follows: 

 

DC/19/63297 Proposed development to 

provide 2 No. units 

comprising of Industrial 

process (Class B1c), 

General Industrial (Class 

B2), Storage or 

Distribution (Class B8) 

with ancillary offices, car 

parking, landscaping, 

service yard areas, and 

associated external works. 

Refused 09.12.2019 

DC/03/41246 Proposed additional car 
parking. 

Refused 06.10.2004 

 

8. Application Details 

 

 Fig 2 – Proposed site plan 

 

  
  

Page 74



 

 

8.1 The development proposes 100% affordable housing, comprising 60 

dwellings, landscaping and associated works. A variety of house types 

are proposed, with the majority arranged in rows of terraces and pairs of 

semi-detached two and two and a half storey dwellings to front on to the 

access road within two perimeter blocks.  

 

8.2 The house types consist of: 10x one bed flats; 20x two bed houses; 18x 

three bed houses and 12x four bed houses. 

 

8.3 Each dwellinghouse would be provided with allocated car parking, either 

to the front or side of the property with additional on-street visitor spaces 

also proposed. Private rear gardens are proposed for each property. 

 

8.4 In respect of the affordable housing mix, 43 Social Rented dwellings and 

17 Shared Ownership dwellings are proposed.  

 

8.5 The landscaping scheme has been designed to respond to the ecology 

of the site and includes a 10m stand-off from the River Tame, 

incorporating the retention of some existing trees where possible and the 

planting of appropriate species to best suit the ecology of the site. The 

access road would feature street trees as part of the overall 

development. 

 

8.6 In addition to the submitted drawings the application is accompanied by 

the following documentation: 

 

i) Planning Statement; 

ii) Design and Access Statement; 

iii) Transport Statement; 

iv) Flood Risk Assessment; 

v) Ecological Appraisal; 

vi) Landscape Strategy; 

vii) Arboriculture Report; 

viii) Noise Assessment; 

ix) Air Quality Assessment; 

Page 75



 

 

x) Affordable Housing Statement; 

xi) Phase I Environmental Site Assessment and Coal Mining Risk 

Assessment; and 

xii) Phase II Geo-Environmental Site Assessment. 

 

8.7 Amended plans has been received which were submitted to address 

design and highway matters.  

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by 106 neighbour notification letters, 

four site notices and a press notice posted in The Chronicle newspaper. 

At the time of writing the report 28 objections have been received to the 

public consultation.  

 

9.2 Objections 

 

 The main material points of objection to the planning application may be 

summarised as follows: 

 

i) Increase in road traffic from the development and concerns over 

highway safety; 

ii) Loss of greenspace; 

iii) Loss of trees, habitat and wildlife; 

iv) Impact of the development on air quality/pollution; 

v) Increase in noise; 

vi) Loss of wildlife corridor - contrary to policy; 

vii) Flood risk; and 

viii) Anti-social behaviour and break ins. 

 
9.3  Non-material objections have also been raised regarding the impact on 

school places. Given the relatively modest nature of the amount of 

housing provided, this would be a matter for the Council’s education 

department who monitor the submission and approval of housing sites. 

Education has confirmed that the number of school places required for 

Page 76



 

 

60 dwellings is 14 primary and six secondary – which is not considered 

to unduly impact on provision. 

 

9.4 With regards to the objections raised above, the comments of consultees 

will be discussed further below, and the points listed above will be 

addressed in section 13 (Material Considerations) when the context of 

the recommendation can be considered in light of consultee responses. 

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Planning and Transportation Policy 

 

 No objection. The proposals are for residential development on land 

allocated as Local Employment Land in the adopted development plan. 

The proposals are a departure from the plan. Planning Policy consider 

that sufficient evidence has been provided to demonstrate that the 

quality of the site is unattractive for employment use and any conflict 

with Policies BCCS EMP3 and DEL2 is outweighed by the benefits of the 

scheme including affordable housing delivery. Furthermore, the 

proposals are considered to accord with the general principles of SAD 

H2 which allows windfall housing development on unallocated greenfield 

land where this will bring an under-used piece of land back into 

beneficial use. Policies BCCS CSP3 and ENV1 seek to ensure that the 

movement of wildlife within wildlife corridors is not impeded by 

development. The applicant has submitted an Ecological Appraisal 

which recommends a series of mitigation measures and biodiversity 

gains that should be secured as part of the proposals. The Proposed 

Site Plan shows a buffer to be maintained along the watercourse with 

retained planting. The site was surveyed on behalf of the Council in 2023 

to determine whether it meets the threshold to be designated a Site of 

Local Importance for Nature Conservation (SLINC). The results of the 

survey indicate that the site does not meet the threshold. Despite the 

departure, the proposals would comply with the development plan as a 

whole and the principle of residential development is accepted in policy 

Page 77



 

 

terms. It would increase the supply of housing land in the borough and 

assist with delivering new homes.  

 

10.2 Highways 

 

 No objection subject to amendments to the site layout to reflect the 

Council’s design guidance. Amendments have now been received which 

address highways concerns. 

 

10.3 Urban Design 

 

 No overall objection. Design points raised have been discussed with the 

consultant and amended plans have been submitted. Whilst these do not 

address all of the points raised by Urban Design, I am of the opinion that 

sufficient alterations have been made which make the design acceptable 

and a balance between highway requirements and spatial design and 

appearance has been achieved. 

 

10.4 Environment Agency 

 

 The EA has been contacted for comment and do not have significant 

concerns regarding flood risk. Only a small part of the site area is within 

Flood Zone 2 (refer to Fig 3), but any built development should be more 

than 8 metres from the ‘top of bank’. The development appears to be in 

accordance with this stand-off distance (refer to Fig 4); however, the EA 

will provide its response in writing in due course. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



 

 

 Fig 3 – Flood map for planning showing Flood Zone 2 

 

  
 

 

Fig 4 – Compliance with stand-off distance (buffer shown in green) 

 

 

Page 79



 

 

10.5  Lead local flood authority (Staffordshire County Council) 

 

Staffordshire act as consultant for Sandwell as lead local flood authority. 

Staffordshire objects on grounds that insufficient detail has been 

submitted to fully demonstrate that an acceptable drainage strategy is 

proposed. This detail relates to hydraulic calculations, maintenance of 

the surface water system, exceedance and consents from the EA 

(discussed above). However, these details are technical in nature, do not 

compromise the principle of development at the site and can be ensured 

by condition. 

 

10.6 Severn Trent 

 

A condition regarding the submission of foul drainage plans is 

recommended. 

 

10.7 Public Health (Air Quality)  

 

 Objection. The officer notes that the submitted Air Quality Assessment 

demonstrates compliance with current annual particulate matter 2.5 

(PM2.5) standards and suggests that air pollution is ‘not significant’ now 

and therefore this location is suitable for residential use. The comments 

go to state that as a local authority we have a duty under the 

Environment Act 2021 to make planning decisions that ensure 

compliance with our legal future PM2.5 targets (as highlighted in section 

2.2.27 of the AQ assessment). The PM2.5 targets are set at 10 µg/m³ by 

2040, with an interim target of 12 µg/m³ by January 2028 as well as 

demonstrating a population exposure reduction of 22% by 2028 and 

35% population exposure by 2040 from the 2018 baseline.  There is no 

modelling to suggest that air pollution exposure levels for future 

receptors, are likely to decrease significantly at this site by 2028. Without 

evidence that this site is likely to meet the 2028 target values for PM2.5, 

or propose measures that would sufficiently mitigate the impact of poor 

local air quality exposure on future residents, the officer recommends 

that the application is refused. In respect of the local impact of the 

Page 80



 

 

scheme on air pollution, the officer notes that mitigation such as electric 

vehicle charging bays and low NOx boilers would be sufficient. 

 

10.8 Public Health (Contaminated Land)  

 

 No objection subject to a condition requiring submission of a further 

detailed site investigation and mitigation measures. 

 

10.9 Public Heath (Noise) 

 

 No objection subject to conditions requiring approval of glazing and 

trickle vents to mitigate the levels of noise within the future residential 

dwellings. Furthermore, there has been an addition for acoustic fencing 

to be included within plots facing the primary school to aid in the 

mitigation of noise from this source. This may also have limited 

mitigating effects from the fire station as the mentioned dwellings are 

also the closest towards the fire station. This fencing option is seen as 

satisfactory and properties of the prospective acoustic fencing should be 

forward for review. Submission of a construction environmental 

management plan (CEMP) to include an appropriate restriction on 

construction hours is also recommended by condition. 

 

10.10 West Midlands Police 

 

 No objection. General observations regarding Secure By Design 

principles are raised. Whilst some design features which intend to 

increase access and permeability through a site can be viewed as 

creating potential escape routes and cause conflict from a crime 

prevention perspective, I am of the opinion that movement through the 

site is generally a positive and have no significant concerns in this 

instance. 

 

 

 

 

Page 81



 

 

10.11 Birmingham and Black Country Wildlife Trust 

 

 The trust raises several concerns. Namely that the impacts of the 

development on Important (Priority) Habitats to have not fully been 

assessed in the submitted Ecological Appraisal. They also state that it is 

confusing to refer to ‘enhancements’ as ‘biodiversity net gains’ (BNG), as 

this provides the impression that a full biodiversity net gain assessment 

has been carried out. I must point out that the requirement for BNG to be 

applied to major sites was not applicable at the time of submission and 

therefore is not required for this proposal.  I acknowledge the difference 

between enhancements and BNGs. As such, I have only considered the 

mitigation suggested in the Ecological Appraisals as enhancements and 

not BNG. The issue of ecology is discussed further in paragraphs 12.3 

and 13.4 onwards. 

 

10.12 Natural England 

 

 Natural England is the Government’s adviser for the natural environment 

in England.  They have not been consulted as there is no statutory 

requirement for the LPA to do so unless a site is of special scientific 

interest or otherwise protected (the site is locally protected but not 

nationally recognised). However, they do offer ‘standing advice’ to 

councils and developers, which is appropriate to mention here given the 

wildlife and habitat concerns raised: 

 

 ‘If the proposal is likely to affect a protected species you can grant 

planning permission where: 

 

• a qualified ecologist has carried out an appropriate survey (where 
needed) at the correct time of year; 

• there’s enough information to assess the impact on protected 
species; 

• all appropriate avoidance and mitigation measures have been 
incorporated into the development and appropriately secured; 

• any compensation measures are acceptable and can be put in 
place; and 

Page 82



 

 

• monitoring and review plans are in place, where appropriate.’ 
 

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/protected-species-how-to-review-planning-

applications#assess-the-information-provided-with-the-planning-

application 

 

10.14 NHS Black Country Integrated Care Board 

 

 The ICB has stated that a commuted sum towards healthcare 

infrastructure should be provided. National guidance distinguishes 

between the purpose of s106 obligations to mitigate site-specific impacts 

and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) which can be used to address 

the cumulative impact on infrastructure in an area. In practice, the use of 

s106 obligations to mitigate site-specific impacts will tend to apply to 

larger, strategic developments which generate a critical mass of demand 

for new or improved infrastructure, where there is insufficient existing 

capacity to accommodate the additional demand. Government guidance 

recognises that CIL is the most appropriate mechanism for capturing 

developer contributions from smaller developments.  

 

10.15 Development plan policies and supporting guidance will set out the types 

and sizes of development from which s106 planning obligations will be 

sought. Although this was considered as part of the Black Country Plan, 

the Council’s current development plan does not include such policies to 

enable sums for healthcare infrastructure. As such, CIL provision is still 

the appropriate mechanism for obligations under the existing policy 

framework. 

 

10.16 Health and Safety Executive 

 

 The site is within a consultation zone of the HSE due to the proximity of 

the Solvay site. The application has been assessed against the 

consultation criteria and the HSE is not required to comment on the 

proposal in this instance. 

 

Page 83

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/protected-species-how-to-review-planning-applications#assess-the-information-provided-with-the-planning-application
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/protected-species-how-to-review-planning-applications#assess-the-information-provided-with-the-planning-application
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/protected-species-how-to-review-planning-applications#assess-the-information-provided-with-the-planning-application


 

 

 

10.17 Canal and River Trust 

 

 Confirmed no objection to the proposal. 

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 The National Planning Policy Framework sets out the Government's 

planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. 

Key paragraphs which are relevant to the application include:  

 

11.2 Paragraph 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that:  

‘Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be 

determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise.’ 

 

11.3 ‘To support the Government’s objective of significantly boosting the 

supply of homes, it is important that a sufficient amount and variety of 

land can come forward where it is needed, that the needs of groups with 

specific housing requirements are addressed and that land with 

permission is developed without unnecessary delay’ (paragraph 60, 

NPPF). 

 

11.4 The Council cannot demonstrate a five-year housing land supply. 

Therefore, paragraph 11d of the NPPF and the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development is engaged. It follows that permission should 

be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly 

and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the 

policies of the Framework as a whole. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the Council’s development plan are relevant: 

 

 

Page 84



 

 

 

 Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS) 

 

CSP1 - The Growth Network 

 CSP3 - Environmental Infrastructure 

CSP4 – Place Making 

DEL1 – Infrastructure Provision 

DEL2 – Managing the Balance Between Employment Land and Housing 

HOU1 - Delivering Sustainable Housing Growth 

HOU2 – Housing Density, Type and Accessibility 

HOU3 - Delivering Affordable Housing 

EMP3 – Local Quality Employment Areas 

EMP4 – Maintaining a Supply of Readily Available Employment Land 

EMP5 - Improving Access to the Labour Market 

TRAN2 – Managing Transport Impacts of New Developments 

TRAN4 - Creating Coherent Networks for Cycling and for Walking 

TRAN5 - Influencing the Demand for Travel and Travel Choices 

ENV1 - Nature Conservation 

ENV3 – Design Quality 

ENV5 – Flood Risk, Sustainable Drainage Systems / Urban Heat Island 

ENV7 – Renewable Energy 

ENV8 – Air Quality 

WM5 - Resource Management and New Development 

 

Site Allocations and Delivery Development Plan Document – 

(SADD) 

 

SAD H2 - Housing Windfalls  

SAD H3 – Affordable Housing 

SAD EMP 2 - Training and Recruitment 

SAD EOS 5 - Environmental Infrastructure 

SAD EOS 9 - Urban Design Principles 

SAD DC2 – Zones Around Hazardous Installations 

SAD DC4 – Pollution Control 

SAD DC 6 - Contaminants, Ground Instability, Mining Legacy 

Page 85



 

 

 

12.2 The site lies within a Regeneration Corridor and relevant policy CSP1 

seeks to secure housing within the corridors built on redundant 

employment land and other brownfield sites. The proposal is therefore 

compliant with this policy. 

 

12.3 Ecology - CSP3, ENV1 and SAD EOS5  

 

Policies CSP3 and ENV1 seek to ensure that the movement of wildlife 

within wildlife corridors is not impeded by development. The applicant 

has submitted an Ecological Appraisal which recommends a series of 

mitigation measures and biodiversity gains that should be secured as 

part of the proposals. The proposed site plan shows a buffer to be 

maintained along the watercourse with retained planting. Additionally, as 

noted above, the site was surveyed on behalf of the Council in 2023 to 

determine whether it meets the threshold to be designated a Site of 

Local Importance for Nature Conservation (SLINC). The results of the 

survey indicate that the site does not meet the threshold.  

 

12.4  Whilst residents’ concern for the site’s ecology is acknowledged, the 

value of ecology on site is considered to be limited. Furthermore, with no 

public access to the site the wider public benefit of the land is restricted. 

In accordance with SAD EOS 5, environmental infrastructure has been 

considered by way of mitigation which can be ensured by condition. This 

mitigation includes tree protection, replacement planting and 

enhancement, pollution prevention to watercourses, updated bat 

surveys, sensitive lighting and timing of works (See Appendix 1). It 

should also be acknowledged that the developer must comply with the 

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, which ensures wildlife protection 

beyond the Council’s remit. 

 

12.5 Design - CSP4, ENV3 and SAD EOS 9 

 

In respect of the design, the development is influenced by the context of 

the local area and would enhance the attributes the area offers in terms 

Page 86



 

 

of its local character. With regards to policies ENV3 and SAD EOS 9, the 

development should comply with the Council’s Residential Design Guide 

2014 which aims to secure high-design quality and sustainable living 

environments for new development in the borough. The applicant has 

submitted a Design and Access Statement and provided revisions to the 

design which I consider to be acceptable, reasonable and achievable 

within the development. As per Urban Design’s request, the design 

would also incorporate street trees and parking bays would be blocked 

paved. 

 

12.6 Planning gain – DEL1 

 

Onsite infrastructure provision, for example, electric vehicle charging 

(EVC) bays, would be ensured by condition. The proposals are liable for 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).  

 

12.7 Housing – HOU1, HOU2, HOU3, SAD H2 and SAD H3 

 

Whilst land is identified and allocated in the development plan to meet 

the borough’s sustainable housing growth, under policy HOU1 additional 

housing capacity will also be sought elsewhere through planning 

permissions on suitable sites. The Council’s latest Housing Delivery Test 

indicates that less than 75% of its housing requirement was delivered in 

the proceeding period and it cannot demonstrate a five-year housing 

land supply. As such, this proposal would assist with providing much 

needed housing in the borough. 

 

12.8 Policy HOU2 relates to housing type and density, a mix of which the 

development is proposing. 

 

12.9 In respect of policies HOU3 and SAD H3, the application form states that 

the proposal would provide 100% affordable housing to be managed by 

a registered provider. The application therefore more than accords with 

policy HOU3 which requires provision of 25% affordable housing on 

Page 87



 

 

schemes of 15 dwellings or more. The developer is required to enter into 

a section 106 agreement to ensure this affordable housing. 

 

12.10 The proposed dwellings would be a windfall, subject to SAD H2. On 

balance the proposal is considered to accord with the general principles 

of SAD H2 which encourages housing on previously developed land that 

is suitable for residential development and will not lead to an 

unacceptable reduction in the supply of employment land. 

 

12.11  Departure – EMP3, EMP4 and DEL2 

 

 Policy EMP3 sets out a range of employment generating uses that Local 

Quality Employment Land will be safeguarded for, whilst policy DEL2 

states that an adequate supply of occupied and available employment 

land should be secured prior to releasing an employment site and that 

the availability of employment land within the area, the quality of the site 

and its geographical market will be taken into account when determining 

planning applications. The site remains vacant and has never been built 

out for employment use.  

 

12.12  The Planning Statement argues that an employment scheme would be 

difficult to deliver on the site due to its small size, together with other 

constraints including being within a wildlife corridor, 8 metre clearance 

from the watercourse and proximity to adjoining residential uses. In 

addition, the site was assessed for development potential as part of 

evidence-base work to inform the preparation of the draft Sandwell Local 

Plan. The site was considered to have moderate suitability for either 

residential or employment development subject to issues of access, 

amenity, traffic generation and congestion, and biodiversity being 

overcome or mitigated. On balance the site was recommended for 

residential allocation in the draft plan to reflect the landowner’s intentions 

to promote the site for residential development. 

 

12.13 Planning Policy is of the view that sufficient evidence has been provided 

to demonstrate that the quality of the site is unattractive for employment 

Page 88



 

 

use and any conflict with EMP3 and DEL2 is outweighed by the benefits 

of the scheme including affordable housing delivery. 

 

12.14 Training and recruitment - EMP5 and SAD EMP 2 

 

Training and recruitment opportunities should be provided as part of any 

new development (EMP5 and SAD EMP 2). This can be ensured by 

condition. 

 

12.15 Highways/Transportation – TRAN2 and TRAN4 

 

TRAN2 seeks to manage the transport impacts of new development. 

Highways raise no objection on traffic and accessibility matters. Whilst it 

is noted that the surrounding road network can become congested, the 

site would function adequately with limited vehicle movements on to the 

local network. In regard to the NPPF, paragraph 115 states that 

‘Development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds 

if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the 

residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.’ The 

impact would not be so severe as to warrant refusal within the context of 

national policy. 

 

12.16 Flood risk -  ENV5  

 

Policy ENV5 seeks to reduce flood risk and secure sustainable drainage 

solutions. As stated above taking into account the comments of 

Staffordshire and the EA, no significant concerns arise subject to 

conditions. 

 

12.17 Renewable energy – ENV7 

 

 Policy ENV7 requires developments of 10 dwellings or more to 

incorporate at least 10% renewable energy generation. Further 

information will be required by condition to confirm that the requirement 

Page 89



 

 

to secure at least 10% renewable energy generation onsite will be met. 

This is likely to be achieved in the building fabric. 

 

12.18   Air quality and pollution – ENV8 and SAD DC4 
 

Policy ENV8 and SAD DC4 seek to protect new residential development 

from poor air quality. The applicant has submitted an Air Quality 

Assessment which concludes that the impact on local air quality is 

assessed to be not significant. Whilst an objection has been received 

from the Council’s Pollution Control team, it is noted in the submitted AQ 

Assessment that: ‘The anticipated NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 

concentrations at the future residential receptors are within the current 

air quality standards, with NO2 and PM10 concentrations expected to fall 

within the exposure criteria’ (Section 8.4.1). Whilst officers have raised 

concerns that the long-term suitability of the site is questionable, 

paragraph 192 of the NPPF states that ‘Planning policies and decisions 

should sustain and contribute towards compliance with relevant limit 

values or national objectives for pollutants…’ Furthermore, paragraph 

194 of the NPPF states: ‘The focus of planning policies and decisions 

should be on whether proposed development is an acceptable use of 

land, rather than the control of processes or emissions (where these are 

subject to separate pollution control regimes). Planning decisions should 

assume that these regimes will operate effectively.’ ENV8 also requires 

compliance with ‘national air quality objectives’ – of which the proposal is 

currently compliant. 

 

12.19 Consequently, I find insufficient weight to condemn the development on 

future air quality targets. Notwithstanding this opinion, the applicant has 

been asked to provide revised modelling and to suggest mitigation to 

address air quality concerns. This can be ensured by condition.  

 

12.20 In respect of the development’s own impact on air quality, Pollution 

Control officers have confirmed the requirement for electric vehicle 

charging points, low NOx boilers and submission of a CEMP to address 

Page 90



 

 

air quality during construction, by condition. Additional measures, as 

stated above, can be ensured by condition. 

 

12.21 In respect of WM5 (Resource Management and New Development), a 

scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 

construction works would be required as part of a CEMP. 

 

12.22 Contamination - SAD DC 6 

 

Land contamination issues can be addressed by the imposition of 

suitably worded conditions requiring further intrusive investigation, 

reporting of any unpredicted contamination and submission of a 

validation certificate following any required mitigation. 

 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in sections 11 and 12. The following section discusses material 

considerations raised in objections to the development: 

 

13.2 Environmental concerns – Noise, air quality and pollution 

  

 No objection has been received from Pollution Control in respect of the 

impact of the development on noise. Noise is not expected this to be any 

more unreasonable than from any other residential estate. In discussing 

the public objection to air and pollution, the main concern raised by 

Pollution Control is the living conditions of proposed residents due to air 

quality. In response to the Pollution Control team, the applicant’s air 

consultant has provided a technical note and has stated: ‘Under the 

Local Air Quality Management (LAQM) framework (which is underpinned 

by the Environment Act 1995) local authorities are required to consider a 

multitude of pollutants but, the pollutant which has been raised as a 

concern is PM2.5 which is not part of this regime. Central government 

long term and interim targets have been set, and local authorities, have 

Page 91



 

 

been tasked in aiding to achieve these targets. The original air quality 

assessment complies with the standards (in line with the LAQM) for the 

pollutants which were considered, and through the further modelling 

undertaken as part of the Technical Note demonstrates that the 

application site is anticipated to also achieve the interim target of an 

overall concentration for 2028. It is noted that the application site does 

not see a 22% reduction from 2018 to 2028, but it is positive to see that 

concentrations have dropped by just under 10%, so things are going in 

the right direction.’ Whilst the technical note is still under review by 

Pollution Control and comments will be reported verbally to the 

committee, I refer to the opinion stated in paragraph 12.18 above; that 

the development would not be compromised by the issue of air quality. 

Additionally, Pollution Control raise no objection regarding the impact of 

the development on the surrounding area. 

 

13.3 Highway considerations - Traffic generation, access, and highway 

safety 

 

 The Council as local highway authority do not object to the application. 

Whilst local concerns are noted, the proposal would be of limited impact 

and certainly not severe within the meaning of the NPPF. 

 

13.4 Ecology concerns – loss of wildlife, habitat and trees 

 

 Whilst I am mindful of the concerns of residents and the comments of 

the Birmingham and Black Country Wildlife Trust (BBWT), I refer to the 

local site assessment of the application site which was conducted by the 

trust on behalf of the Council in June 2023. Following on-site 

assessment by a senior planning and biodiversity officer of the trust, the 

report summarises: ‘The site is of a good size and well positioned for 

access by the general public. However, limited access and a general 

overgrown and unappealing character limit its current value as a local 

wildlife site. For a site of its size and urban position, it supports a low 

diversity of habitats, all of which are limited in their biodiversity value. 

None of these habitat types are considered particularly notable, even in 

Page 92



 

 

a local context.’ The assessment goes on to recommend: ‘Management 

of the site should prioritise improving the structural diversity of woodland 

scrub parcels. Scrub and mature trees should be reduced near the River 

Tame to allow light to more readily reach the watercourse. Re-profiling 

and re-naturalisation measures should be undertaken in order to 

enhance this stretch of the River Tame.’ 

 

13.5 However, I note that certain areas of the site could not be accessed at 

the time of the above assessment and the BBWT advise that these 

areas be maintained as Potential Site of Importance (PSI) until they can 

be surveyed directly. These comments relate to the southern extent of 

the site which could not be directly accessed during the site assessment 

survey and was only observed from adjacent accessible space. The 

submitted Ecology Appraisal does provide an assessment of the entire 

site and is based on a thorough on-site investigation. The appraisal 

states that the habitats within the site support several protected species 

and mitigation measures are put forward to protect and minimise the risk 

of harm. The woodland and watercourse are identified as important local 

ecological features and, whilst it would not be practicable to avoid the 

loss of habitats on developable areas, attempts have been made to 

offset the loss, particularly in the landscaping proposals.   

 

13.6 What can be gained from both reports is that the site is highly unlikely to 

warrant any specific protection. The retained river course and woodland 

would continue to function as a wildlife corridor; the purpose of which is 

to safeguard linear habitats to facilitate the movement and connection of 

wildlife. Given the Council’s position of presumption, as discussed 

below, it can be argued that if the strategic benefits of a development 

clearly outweigh the importance of local nature conservation, as alluded 

to in policy ENV1, then development may proceed with appropriate 

mitigation. Therefore, mindful of local opposition to the proposal on these 

grounds, neither the applicant’s assessment or the Council’s own 

assessment of the site reveal sufficient evidence to protect the site and, 

in my opinion, refusal on these grounds would not carry sufficient weight. 

Conditions should seek further evaluation of residual development 

Page 93



 

 

impacts on areas of PSI taking into mitigation, compensation and 

enhancement. 

 

13.7 Flood risk 

 

 Whilst Staffordshire object to the proposal, the content relates to 

technical detail, not to the principle of development on the site. 

Therefore, the required detail can be ensured by condition. The condition 

can be tailored to be specific to Staffordshire’s requirements and 

development would not be allowed to commence unless they are 

satisfied with this further detail.  

 

13.8 Moving to the strategic management of flooding and the principle of 

development in relation to the flood risk associated with the site, the 

Environment Agency has alluded to having no objection to the proposal. 

Their comments will be reported verbally to the committee; however, I do 

not consider this issue to carry sufficient weight as to delay 

determination. 

 

13.9 Contamination 

 

 As stated above, the Council’s contamination officer raises no significant 

concerns. The submitted reports consider ground conditions, especially 

in relation to the potential for any ground contamination. Risk from 

contamination is considered low and can be further addressed by 

condition. 

 

13.10 Anti-social behaviour and break ins 

 

 The police raise no objection to the proposal and there is no evidence 

before me that crime would rise because of the development. To the 

contrary, there would clearly be a greater level of presence and 

surveillance to deter such occurrences. 

 

13.11 Presumption and the ‘titled balance’ 

Page 94



 

 

 

 The ‘tilted balance’ is similar to the normal planning balance but it is only 

engaged in exceptional circumstances. As the Council has less than a 

five-year housing land supply, relevant local policies are out-of-date. In 

the most basic sense, the tilted balance is a version of the planning 

balance that is already tilted in an applicant’s favour. If the tilted balance 

applies, planning permission should normally be granted unless the 

negative impacts ‘significantly and demonstrably’ outweigh the positive 

impacts. 

14. Conclusion and planning balance 

 

14.1 All decisions on planning applications should be based on an objective 

balancing exercise. This is known as applying the ‘planning balance’. 

It is established by law that planning applications should be refused if 

they conflict with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. This essentially means that the positive impacts of a 

development should be balanced against its negative impacts. 

Conflict with development plan policies will always be a negative impact. 

If the policies are up-to-date, that negative impact will be given greater 

weight. However, if they are out-of-date, the weight given to the negative 

impact will be seriously reduced. No matter what the negative impacts 

are, if a proposal manages to secure sufficient positive impacts (of 

sufficient weight) to tilt the planning balance in its favour, planning 

permission should be granted 

 

14.2 I note the matters raised regarding ecological concerns; however, the 

matter is one of balance, and if appropriate mitigation can be provided, 

then a development may proceed. Conditions can ensure the suggested 

mitigation is carried out. 

 

14.3 With regards to the impact of the development on residential amenity, 

there is little evidence before me that the impact would be sufficient to 

warrant refusal of the application. Additionally, Highways raise no overall 

Page 95



 

 

objection to the development in respect of an increase in traffic, access 

or highway safety. 

 

14.4 The Council’s development plan policies relating to the supply and 

distribution of housing are out-of-date and the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development in the NPPF is engaged due to its inability to 

meet its housing land supply. Notwithstanding this fact, policy SAD H3 

allows for windfall residential development on brownfield sites and the 

principle of residential development would be considered acceptable 

here in planning policy terms even if the Council could demonstrate a 

five-year land housing land supply. 

 

14.5 It is therefore considered that, given the land constraints which exist in 

the borough, the development proposes an appropriate and responsible 

reuse of land which would bring an opportunity for a mix of new 

affordable housing. In my opinion, the planning balance in respect of the 

benefits of the development outweigh the harm and the application 

should be approved subject to the signing of a section 106 agreement to 

ensure the affordable housing and subject to appropriately worded 

conditions. 

  

15. Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so. In my opinion, the benefits of the proposal 

outweigh the harm and it is therefore considered that refusal of the 

application would not be warranted; especially as the development 

would aspire to the Council’s Corporate Plan and Vision 2030 in 

providing quality housing. 

 

16. Implications 

  

Resources: None.  

Page 96



 

 

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

New affordable housing. 

 

Social Value Opportunities for education, recreation and 

employment during the build. 

Climate 

Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 

carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 

need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 

Proposals that help to shape places in ways that 

contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 

emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 

resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 

including the conversion of existing buildings; and 

support renewable and low carbon energy and 

associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

 

17. Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 – Mitigation measures 

Context Plan 

PL02 Rev M – Site plan 

SS-01 Rev A – Street scenes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 97



 

 

Appendix 1 – Mitigation measures 

 

 

Page 98



 

 

 

 

 

Page 99



 

 

 

 

Page 100



 

 

 

 

 

Page 101



 

 

 

 

 

Page 102



 

 

 

 

Page 103



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 104



A

P
age 105



152.7m

5

3

78

Ja
ck

so
n C

ou
rt

14
5

2

185

18
3

LANGLEY
203

15
2.4

m213

13
9

4

152.1m

195

15
7

1

6

131

15
1

137

approx location of
mineshafts (20m buffer

zone)

pedestrian
link

pedestrian
footbridge

8m stand-off zone
RIVER TA

ME

RIVER TA
ME

RI
VE

R 
TA

ME

Pump
station

AL
LU
M

FR
AN
CI
S

FR
AN
CI
S

WORSLEY

ATKINS

ATKINS

ATKINS

ATKINS

ATKINS

ATKINS

FRANCIS

FRANCIS

ATKINS

AL
LU
M

ATKINS

ATKINS

ALLUM

AT
KI
NS

AT
KI
NS

AT
KI
NS

AT
KI
NS

ATKINS

WO
RS
LE
YFR

AN
CI
S

FR
AN
CI
S

FR
AN
CI
S

FR
AN
CI
S

ALLUM

AL
LU
M

2

S

3

1

2

3

4
4

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

5

S

6

7

7

FRANCIS

FRANCIS
ATKINS

ATKINS

*

*

*

AL
LU
M

AL
LU
M

AL
LU
M

AL
LU
M

ALLUM

ALLUM

ATKINS

FRANCIS

FRANCIS

FRANCIS

FRANCIS

FRANCIS

FRANCIS

8

9

10

10

11

11

12

12

13

13

14

14

WO
RS
LE
Y

W
OR
SL
EY

WORSLEY

16

17

18

19

20

15

15

AL
LU
M

FRANCIS

ATKINS

23

24

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

22

22
36

36

25

25

27

26

29

28

29

28

30

30

31

31

30

31

32

33

34
35

36

35

35

37

38

37

38

60

59 39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

39

39

40

40

41

41

42

42

43

43

44

44

45

45

46

46

47

47

48

S

49

50

48

49

50

51

52

51

51

52

52

53

54

53

54

55

55

56

56

57

58

55

56

57

58

60

59

20

20

19

19

18

17

SS

FRANCIS

16

16

1

1

32

32
34

33

*

*

ATKINS

ATKINS

ATKINS

21

21

Titford Road, Oldbury

Proposed Layout

N

LEGEND

PLOTS WITH ADDITIONAL HABITABLE WINDOWS*
V VISITOR PARKING

checked:date:

drawn by:scale:

site:

title:

@A1

drawing no:

revision:sheet no:

Countryside Properties (UK) Limited
Partnerships Midlands

i10 Wolverhampton Interchange
Railway Drive

Wolverhampton  WV1 1LD
Tel: 01902 290020

www.countryside-properties.com

© This drawing is copyright of Countryside Properties (UK) Limited and must not be copied or reproduced in whole or in part, nor used in conjunction with any project without Countryside's written consent.

RB/DF

DRAWING_LOCATION

PL-02

JULY2023

PT1:500

M

A       13.07.23   PT      Mix Amended as requested by Land Department

EXISTING TREES TO BE RETAINED

2.5m NO BUILD EASEMENT FROM TOP OF BANK

B       31.07.23   KP      Site replanned to increase plots, vis splays added, 2.5m 
      easement added from top of bank, mix & nett area updated, 
      hipped roofs removed.

C      31.07.23    KP      Plot 16 changed to Francis and correct schedule shown.

D      27.09.23    KP      Pumping station offset amended as per RPS' drawing, turning 
            head by PS shortened, radii amended in front of plot 4, plots 
                44-52 moved south out of offset, plots 37-47 moved east slightly,

      red line amended on the eastern boundary to match title WM525901,
      pedestrian link to north amended due to levels.

E      29.09.23    KP      Road increased to 6.5m with 2x2m footpaths (1m service strip at entrance
      due to SS) and layout adjusted to suit.

F      16.20.23    KP      Red line amended to suit title overlays.

G      12.12.23    KP      Scale bar added.

H      17.01.24    KP      Upfront parking bays increased to 2.8m in most cases, road reduced to 
      5.5m after plot 9, parking for plots 33/34, 37/38 & 59/60 amended from 
      parallel bays, 1.2m footpath added next to pump station, raised table added.

J     25.01.24    RH      Plots updated with back to back dist increased, parking amended to plots
                                     53,54. Worsley plots revised to show access to rear garden areas,
                                     shared drives shown block paved and plots 48-50 moved away from
                                     boundary.

K     30.01.24    RH      Plots 5-9 moved over and road realigned, raised table added to main
                                     entrance and all parking bays 2.8m wide.

L     05.02.24    KP       Plots 5-15 & 33-45 amended slightly to increase parking bays, road fronting
      53-59 moved north 0.8m.

M     07.02.24    KH       Plots 11,12,13,14,40,41,43,48,49,50 & 51 parking areas moved to directly
       in front or centered on plots. Plots 44&45 moved closer to highway to 
       increase distance from plot 48. Atkins housetype on plots 57&58 changed
       from hipped roof configuration to pitched. plots 33-36 moved eastwards to
       allow side by side parking bays for plot 21, rather the tandem. Addition of
       tree 'build outs' in varies locations. Driveways on plots 1-15, 21, 35-36,
       39-47 changed to block paving.

BLOCK PAVED DRIVEWAYS.

Page 106

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
5.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
2.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
10.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
21.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
2.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
2.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
10.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
20.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
5.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
2.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
2.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
2.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
20.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
10.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
25 m

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
SCALE BAR  1:500



 
 

 

 

 

21 February 2024 
 

Subject: Proposed Site Visits 

Contact Officer: John Baker 
Service Manager - Development Planning and 
Building Consultancy 
John_baker@sandwell.gov.uk 

 
Alison Bishop 
Development Planning Manager 
Alison_bishop@sandwell.gov.uk 

 

1 Recommendations 
 

2 That the Committee notes that the following planning application(s) will 

be visited by the Committee on 27th March 2024. 

 

3 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 Planning officers recommend these visit(s) to assist with the timescales 

set by government for reaching decisions on planning applications and 

when an application has generated substantial public interest. 

 

4 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan? 
 

  

We now have many new homes to meet a full 
range of housing needs in attractive 
neighbourhoods and close to key transport 
routes. 
Our distinctive towns and neighbourhoods are 
successful centres of community life, leisure and 
entertainment where people increasingly choose 

  

Report to the Planning Committee 

Page 107

Agenda Item 8

mailto:John_baker@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:Alison_bishop@sandwell.gov.uk


to bring up their families. 
Sandwell now has a national reputation for 
getting things done, where all local partners are 
focused on what really matters in people’s lives 
and communities. 

5 Context and Key Issues 

5.1 Planning applications can generate considerable public interest and it is 

considered that in some circumstances a visit to the site by the 

planning committee will assist them in understanding the proposal in 

relation to the surrounding area. 

5.2 Visiting the site earlier in the planning process can assist with the 

timescales set by government for reaching decisions on planning 

applications. 

5.3 In the event that the application does not generate objections or it is 

refused in line with objector’s concerns, then members will no longer be 

required to consider the planning application before their committee 

and instead the application will be decided under delegated powers. 

5.4 Site visit(s) for the following planning application(s) are reported.  A 

location plan and site layout are attached:- 

Application No. and 

Description. 

Date 

received 

 Reason 

DC/23/68374 

Retention of use from 
warehouse to car sales, 
external alterations to 
front, and entrance gates 
at 134 Franchise Street 
Wednesbury 

DC/23/68946 

First floor side extension, 
single storey side 
extension, two/single, , 

12.06.2023 

14.12.2023 

Concerns that the development will 
impact on road safety and the local 
community, due to the impact of vehicles 
over spilling onto the road and nearby the 
junction. 

This application has generated objections 
and is a revision to an existing 
unauthorized extension to reduce the 
footprint. Members would therefore 

benefit from visiting the site to see the  

Page 108



storey rear extensions 

increase in roof height 

two rear dormer windows, 

front porch, reinstatement 

of verge new boundary 

fence and frontage parking  

at 10 Barnfordhill Close 

Oldbury 

B68 8ES 

 

DC/23/68948 

Victoria Park 

Victoria Road 

Tipton 

 

Proposed refurbishment of 

existing MUGA (Multi Use 

Games Area), installation 

of floodlights with 4 No. 

floodlight columns, storage 

container and new 3m and 

4m fencing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15.12.2023 

existing works and the site surroundings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Objections have been received relating to 
light pollution, noise and traffic; as such, 
the visit will give Members the opportunity 
to view the proposal site and its 
surroundings 

 

6 Alternative Options 
 
6.1 There are no alternative options. 
 
 

7. Implications 
 

Resources: There are no direct implications in terms of the 
Council’s strategic resources. 
If the Planning Inspectorate overturns the 
Committee’s decision and grants consent, the Council 
may be required to pay the costs of such an appeal, 
for which there is no designated budget. 

Legal and 
Governance: 

The Planning Committee has delegated powers to 
determine planning applications within current Council 
policy. 
Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 gives applicants a right to appeal when they 
disagree with the local authority’s decision on their 
application, or where the local authority has failed to 
determine the application within the statutory 
timeframe 

Page 109



Risk: There are no risks associated with this report. 

Equality: There are no equality implications associated with this 
report. 

Health and 
Wellbeing: 

There are no health and wellbeing implications 
associated with this report. 

Social Value There are no implications linked to social value with 
this report. 

 
8. Appendices 
 

Location plans 
Site layout plans 

 
 

Page 110



 

Page 111



P
age 112



P
age 113



GSPublisherVersion 0.0.100.100

C

Date:

Name:Comment(s):Rev: Date: Check:

DESIGNARCHITECTURE

Planning
Mr Harminder Singh ReehalClient:

10 Barnfordhill Close, Oldbury, West Midlands, B68 8ESJob:

Status:

Scale @ A1:Checked:

Drg no:23.21Job no:

MANAGEMENT

Title:

Drawn:

Block and Location Plan

P06

First Floor Office Suite, 271 Hagley Road, Edgbaston. B16 9NB

T: 0121 238 3263   E:info@admstudio.co.uk

www.admstudio.co.uk

Birmingham Office:

This Drawing and the Building Works Depicted are the Copyright of ADM Studio and May Not be
Reproduced or Amended Excepted by Written Permission. No Liability will be Accepted for
Amendments Made by Other Persons.

All Dimensions to be Checked on Site and Architect Notified of Any Discrepancies Prior to
Commencement.

Proposed Rear Extension, Side
Extension, Front Porch Alterations,

Loft Conversion and Internal
Alterations

Barnfordhill Close

44

38

24

28

36 30

22

8
2

23 15 11 1

34 46

Barnfordhill Close

44

38

24

28

36 30

22

8
2

23 15 11 1

34 46

EK

1:500 & 1:1250GM

N NE

E

S

W
NW

SW SE

0 25
Scale Bar 1:1250

50 200100 0 10
Scale Bar 1:500

20 10050

Location Plan at 1:1250

Notes:

Serial Number: 271700
Crown Copyright and Database Right 2023
Ordnance Survey Licence 100048957
Reproduction in Whole or in Part is Prohibited without
the Prior Permission of Ordnance Survey

C

Block Plan at 1:500

12.2023

P
age 114



Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2023. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Skatepark

BR
EW

ER
Y 

ST
RE

ET

18

1

Park Lodge

Sports Facility

38

139.6m

Sports Facility

Tennis Court

79

24 Victoria Park

12

20

4

6
5

PARK LANE WEST

28

75a

Lake

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2023. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

39
57

00

291750

291800

291850

291900

291950

39
57

50

39
58

00

39
58

50

39
59

00

25M 50M0 100M 150M

CLIENT

PROJECT

DRAWING

AUTHOR

SITE PLAN

PAPER SIZE

PROJECT

STATUS

SCALE

VICTORIA PARK TIPTON
PLAYZONE FACILITY DEVELOPMENT

ISSUE DATE

ISSUED BY VERSION

DRAWING

THE FOOTBALL FOUNDATION

Labosport Ltd
Unit 3, Aerial Way, Hucknall, Nottinghamshire, NG15 6DW

+44 (0)115 968 1998
www.labosport.com

info@labosport.co.uk

PLANNING

A1

MD

LSUK 23-0236 07.12.2023

1:1250

01

23-0236 02

NOTES

LEGEND / KEY

SITE PLAN
CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK

NO GUARANTEE CAN BE GIVEN THAT ALL SERVICES HAVE BEEN SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING

NO GUARANTEE CAN BE GIVEN TO THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS OF ANY
SERVICE PROVIDER RECORD INFORMATION SHOWN IN THIS DRAWING AND NO
LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR ANY LOSSES THAT ARISE DUE TO A LACK OF
ACCURACY IN ANY SERVICE PROVIDERS RECORD INFORMATION

RELEVANT SERVICE DRAWINGS SHOULD BE OBTAINED FROM APPROPRIATE SERVICE
PROVIDERS AND USED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THIS DRAWING

REFERENCE SHOULD ALSO BE MADE TO HISTORICAL PLANS AND AS BUILT
DRAWINGS

THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT TO LABOSPORT LTD

APPLICATION SITE AREA
REQUIRED = 980m2

LAND AREA UNDER
OWNERSHIP OF CLIENT

PROPOSED FLOODLIGHTING TO BE 8M
HIGH FENCE FIXED LUMINAIRES (1NR
IN EACH CORNER OF THE PROPOSED
PZ)

P
age 115



Location Plan
Site Address: Easting: 395807 Northing: 291862

Date Produced: 14-Dec-2023 Scale: 1:2500 @A4

Planning Portal Reference: PP-12677688v1

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 OS 100042766

P
age 116



21 February 2024 

Subject: Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate 
Contact Officer: John Baker 

Service Manager - Development Planning and 
Building Consultancy 
John_baker@sandwell.gov.uk 

Alison Bishop 
Development Planning Manager 
Alison_bishop@sandwell.gov.uk 

1 Recommendations 

1.1 That Planning Committee notes the decisions of the Planning 
Inspectorate as detailed in the attached appendices. 

2 Reasons for Recommendations 

2.1 This report is submitted to inform the Committee of the outcomes 
of appeals that have been made to the Planning Inspectorate by 
applicants who were unhappy with the Committee’s decision on 
their application. 

Report to the Planning Committee 

Page 117

Agenda Item 9

mailto:John_baker@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:Alison_bishop@sandwell.gov.uk


3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan? 
 

  

We now have many new homes to meet a full 
range of housing needs in attractive 
neighbourhoods and close to key transport 
routes. 
Our distinctive towns and neighbourhoods are 
successful centres of community life, leisure and 
entertainment where people increasingly choose 
to bring up their families. 
Sandwell now has a national reputation for 
getting things done, where all local partners are 
focused on what really matters in people’s lives 
and communities. 

  

  

 
4 Context and Key Issues 

 
4.1 Applicants who disagree with the local authority’s decision on their 

planning application may submit an appeal to the Planning 
Inspectorate. An appeal may also be made where the local 
authority has failed to determine the application within the statutory 
timeframe. 

 
4.2 Appeals must be submitted within 3 months (householder 

proposals) six months (commercial developments) of the date 
of the                  local authority’s decision notice. 

 
4.3 Decisions on the following appeals are reported, with further 

detailed set out in the attached decision notice:- 
 
 
 

Application Ref Site Address Inspectorate 
DC/23/68323  4 Huskison Close 

 Oldbury 
 B69 1LZ 

  Allowed 

Page 118



5 Alternative Options 
 
5.1 There are no alternative options. 

 
 
6 Implications 

 
Resources: There are no direct implications in terms of the 

Council’s strategic resources. 
If the Planning Inspectorate overturns the 
Committee’s decision and grants consent, the Council 
may be required to pay the costs of such an appeal, 
for which there is no designated budget. 

Legal and 
Governance: 

The Planning Committee has delegated powers to 
determine planning applications within current Council 
policy. 
Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 gives applicants a right to appeal when they 
disagree with the local authority’s decision on their 
application, or where the local authority has failed to 
determine the application within the statutory 
timeframe 

Risk: There are no risks associated with this report. 
Equality: There are no equality implications associated with this 

report. 
Health and 
Wellbeing: 

There are no health and wellbeing implications 
associated with this report. 

Social Value There are no implications linked to social value with 
this report. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of 
the need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing 
resources, including the conversion of existing 
buildings; and support renewable and low carbon 
energy and associated infrastructure, will be 
welcomed. 

 
7. Appendices 

 
APP/G4620/W/23/3328400 

Page 119



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision  

Site visit made on 9 January 2024  
by L C Hughes BA (Hons) MTP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 1 February 2024  

 
Appeal Ref: APP/G4620/W/23/3328400 

4 Huskison Close, Sandwell, Oldbury B69 1LZ  
• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mr Harpreet Singh of KDB Care Ltd T/A Right Steps against the 

decision of Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council. 

• The application Ref DC/23/68323, dated 25 May 2023, was refused by notice dated    

21 July 2023. 

• The development proposed is change of use from a C3 dwelling house to a C2 use for a 

children's residential home for young people aged 7-18. 

Decision 

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for proposed change 
of use from a C3 dwelling house to a C2 use for a children's residential home 

for young people aged 7-18 at 4 Huskison Close, Sandwell, Oldbury B69 1LZ in 
accordance with the terms of the application, Ref DC/23/68323, dated 25 May 
2023, subject to the following conditions: 

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years 
from the date of this decision. 

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the following approved plans: Existing floor plans – Drawing ref A01500-P1; 
Proposed floor plans – Drawing ref A01600-P1; and Location and site layout 

plan – Drawing ref A0750-P2. 

3) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use 

Classes) Order 1987 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with 
or without modification) the premises shall be used only as a children’s 

residential home for up to three children aged 7-18 and for no other 
purpose (including any other use falling within Class C2 of the Order, but 
may revert back to C3 (dwellinghouse) on cessation of the use). 

4) Prior to the building’s first use hereby permitted, the vehicular parking 
space shown on the submitted location and site layout plan drawing ref 

A0750- P2 shall be provided, and shall be retained as a parking space 
thereafter.    

Preliminary Matters 

2. On the 19 December 2023 the Government published a revised National 
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) later updated on 20th December 

2023, together with a written ministerial statement (WMS). The revised 
Framework is a material consideration which should be taken into account from 

Page 120

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/G4620/W/23/3328400

 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

the day of publication. I have familiarised myself with the content of the 

revised Framework and the accompanying WMS. Having considered the parties’ 
respective cases and the nature of the revisions, in light of the principles of 

natural justice, I have not considered it necessary to invite any submissions 
from the parties on the revised Framework.   

Main Issues 

3. The main issues are the effect of the proposed development on: 

a) the living conditions of occupiers of neighbouring properties, with particular 

regard to traffic movements and disturbance; and 

b) highway safety. 

Reasons 

Living conditions 

4. No 4 Huskison Close is a detached four-bedroom dwelling house on a pleasant 

modern housing estate within the residential area of Oldbury. The proposed 
use is for a residential home for three young people aged 7-18 years old, which 
would provide a bedroom for each child and a staff bedroom with an integrated 

office. There would be 24 hour care provision by staff with a shift pattern of 
13.00pm and 22.30pm and 07.00am and 13.30pm during weekdays and term 

time and 10.00am -22.30pm and 08.00am -11pm.  

5. The home would be managed by 5 therapeutic residential workers, 3 senior 
therapeutic residential workers, one manager and a deputy manager. During 

the day there would be one carer allocated to each child, and during the 
evenings there would be a maximum of two. All staff members would attend a 

meeting on Monday for two hours.  

6. There would be comings and goings to and from school and at staff handover 
times, plus social, recreational and other outings. It is therefore likely that 

there would be some limited additional noise and disturbance, over and above 
that associated with a four bedroomed house, particularly connected to the 

changeover of staff. However, such movements would not be 
disproportionately large or significantly above what could reasonably be 
expected for a family with three children in a four-bedroom dwelling carrying 

out their day to day activities.  

7. The area is relatively well-served by public transport and fairly close to local 

facilities. As a result, a number of the comings and goings in relation to the 
proposed development could be by foot, which would limit the amount of 
vehicular movements to and from the site. However, as the shift patterns 

would result in staff leaving work late in the evening, I anticipate it likely that 
some staff members would use a car to travel to and from work.  However, I 

do not consider it particularly unusual to hear comings and goings and 
vehicular movements during the evenings in residential areas, due to peoples’ 

work patterns and social activities.  

8. The property is located within a cul-de-sac where residents are less likely to 
experience passing traffic noise. However, the appeal property is located near 

the start of the cul-de-sac, and so any vehicular movements resulting from the 

Page 121

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/G4620/W/23/3328400

 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

development would be unlikely to generate passing traffic noise for properties 

further along the cul-de-sac.   

9. Given the limited change in traffic movements anticipated, I consider that the 

situation would not be materially different to that expected if the property was 
retained as a four-bedroomed family dwelling. I conclude that the proposed 
development would not harm the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers, 

with particular regard to traffic movements and disturbance. The proposal 
would therefore accord with Policy SAD H4 of Sandwell’s Site Allocations and 

Delivery Development Plan Document 2012 which seeks to ensure that 
proposals for housing for people with specific needs are compatible with 
adjacent uses.  

Highway safety 

10. The Council’s highways department have recommended that care homes 

provide one off-street parking space per four bedrooms for visitor provision, 
one off-street parking space for a manager, and one additional off-street 
parking space per three full time equivalent other staff members. The proposed 

development would therefore require three off-street parking spaces. 

11. The proposed development has two off-street parking spaces, and the 

appellant has indicated that part of the grassed frontage at the property could 
be removed to provide a further parking space. I have imposed a condition to 
ensure that this parking space is provided prior to the building’s first use as a 

children’s residential home.  

12. The highways department have expressed concern that the two existing off-

street parking spaces are not sufficiently deep to accommodate larger vehicles 
due to the position of a porch at the property, and would cause vehicles to 
overhang the footpath so as not to block the property entrance. 

13. However, the appellant has submitted photographs showing that two vehicles 
can be safely parked in front of the porch without encroaching on to the 

pavement. Indeed, on my site visit there was a reasonably large car 
comfortably parked in front of the porch which was not overhanging the 
pavement. I therefore consider that with the addition of a further parking 

space, which I have conditioned, three vehicles could safely be parked off-
street at the appeal property. 

14. Additionally, I noted from my site visit that there were opportunities for on-
street parking without blocking residents’ drives should there be occasions 
when more than three spaces may be required. For example, there is a long 

blank fence and pavement at nearby Mallen Drive which would allow for on-
street parking for vehicles at its side without impacting residents.  

15. I conclude that the proposal would not have a detrimental impact on highway 
safety and that sufficient parking can be provided within the curtilage of the 

development. The proposal would accord with the Framework which requires 
development to function well and add to the overall quality of the area. 

Other Matters 

16. I have carefully considered the many concerns raised by interested parties, 
including those relating to noise and disturbance, and parking issues, which I 

have dealt with in the main issues. I have also noted concerns regarding 

Page 122

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/G4620/W/23/3328400

 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          4 

privacy. However, this matter was considered at the planning application stage 

and found to be acceptable and I have no substantive evidence that would lead 
me to conclude differently.  

17. I have noted concerns that the proposed development would be an 
inappropriate business use and out of character with the residential area. 
However, the proposed use falls into a residential use in the Use Classes Order 

1987 (as amended). It does not fall into a commercial, business or service use. 
As such, the proposed use would be compatible with a residential area. I do not 

consider that the proposal would generate activities that would be significantly 
different to a family home, nor would the visual appearance of the property be 
altered to such a degree that would harm the character of the area.  

18. Concerns have been raised regarding the potential for anti-social behaviour and 
criminal activity. Whilst these concerns can be viewed as a material 

consideration, in this case there is no substantiated evidence that the proposal 
would give rise to anti-social behaviour or criminal activity. I have also noted 
that West Midlands Police have not objected to the proposal.  

19. I have noted concerns regarding the impact on house prices, insurance 
premiums, breach of covenants and the fact that the appellant is a new care 

provider. However, these are not matters that affect my consideration of the 
main issues. 

20. Whilst I recognise concerns regarding the possibility that this proposal may set 

a precedent for similar developments, a generalised concern of this nature does 
not justify withholding permission in this case. Furthermore it is necessary for 

me to consider the appeal on its own merits and I have found it to be 
acceptable and in accordance with policy.  

Conditions 

21. I have considered the conditions suggested by the Council, having regard to 
the Planning Practice Guidance on conditions. I have slightly amended and 

amalgamated the conditions in the interest of clarity. In addition to the 
standard time limit on the commencement of development (condition 1), it is 
necessary to list the relevant plans (condition 2) to provide certainty. Given 

that use Class C2 includes other uses, a condition to restrict the use to a 
children’s home within Use Class C2 for up to three children is necessary in the 

interests of residents’ living conditions and to adequately control the use of the 
site to protect the amenity of the area given the potential of other uses within 
the class to give rise to other planning harms (condition 3). It is necessary to 

attach a condition requiring the provision of a further parking space, in the 
interests of highway safety (condition 4). 

Conclusion 

22. For the reasons given above, I conclude that the development would comply 

with the development plan as a whole and there are no other material 
considerations to lead me to find otherwise than in accordance with it. As a 
result, the appeal is allowed. 

L C Hughes  

INSPECTOR 

Page 123

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


This page is intentionally left blank



21 February 2024 

Subject: Applications Determined Under Delegated 
Powers 

Contact Officer: John Baker 
Service Manager – Development Planning and 
Building Consultancy 
John_Baker@sandwell.gov.uk 

Alison Bishop 
Development Planning Manager 
Alison_Bishop@sandwell.gov.uk 

1 Recommendations 

1.1 That the Planning Committee notes the applications determined under 
delegated powers by the Director – Regeneration and Growth set out in 
the attached Appendix. 

2 Reasons for Recommendations 

2.1 This report is submitted to inform the Committee of the decisions on 
applications determined under delegated powers by the Director – 
Regeneration and Growth. 

Report to the Planning Committee 

Page 125

Agenda Item 10

mailto:John_Baker@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:Alison_Bishop@sandwell.gov.uk


3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan? 
 

  

We now have many new homes to meet a full 
range of housing needs in attractive 
neighbourhoods and close to key transport 
routes. 

 
Our distinctive towns and neighbourhoods are 
successful centres of community life, leisure and 
entertainment where people increasingly choose 
to bring up their families. 

 
Sandwell now has a national reputation for 
getting things done, where all local partners are 
focused on what really matters in people’s lives 
and communities. 

  

  

 
 

4 Context and Key Issues 
 

4.1 The applications determined under delegated powers are set out in the 
Appendix. 

 
 

5 Alternative Options 
 

There are no alternative options. 
 
 

6 Implications 
 

Resources: There are no implications in terms of the Council’s 
strategic resources. 

Legal and 
Governance: 

The Director – Regeneration and Growth has taken 
decisions in accordance with powers delegated under 
Part 3 (Appendix 5) of the Council’s Constitution. 

Risk: There are no risk implications associated with this 
report. 

Equality: There are no equality implications associated with this 
report. 

 
 
 

Page 126



Health and 
Wellbeing: 

There are no health and wellbeing implications 
associated with this report. 

Social Value There are no implications linked to social value with 
this report. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed. 

 
 

7 Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 - Applications determined under delegated powers by the 
Director – Regeneration and Growth. 

 
 

Page 127



SANDWELL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
Applications determined under delegated powers by the Director – Regeneration and 

Growth since your last Committee Meeting 
 

REPORT FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY 
 
Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

    

DC/23/67924 
 
Rowley 

Edwin Richards 
Quarry 
Portway Road 
Rowley Regis 
 

Proposed residential 
development comprising 
of 278 No. dwellings 
(Reserved matters 
application for 
appearance, 
landscaping, layout and 
scale) - Pursuant to 
outline planning 
application DC/14/57745. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Reserved 
Matters 
 
21st December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68704 
 
St Pauls 

Land Adj No 2 St 
Albans Road 
Smethwick 
B66 1EG 

Proposed 1 No. 
residential dwelling. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
10th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68717 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

Birmingham County 
Football Association 
Ray Hall Lane 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6JF 

Proposed 3G Artificial 
Grass Pitch (AGP) with 
perimeter fencing, 
hardstanding areas, 
storage container, 
floodlights, access 
footpath and topsoil 
bunds 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

Page 128



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68807 
 
Old Warley 

10 Oak Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0BE 

Proposed two storey 
side/rear and single 
storey rear extensions 
(Revision to approved 
planning application 
DC/22/67697). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
8th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68803 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

68 Grove Vale 
Avenue 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6BZ 

Proposed two/single 
storey side and single 
storey rear extensions, 
garage conversion into 
habitable room, 
fenestration alterations 
and render/cladding to 
front/side/rear (Revision 
to withdrawn application 
DC/23/68349). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
5th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68818 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

4 Arundel Avenue 
Wednesbury 
WS10 9EU 

Proposed single and two 
storey side and single 
storey front and rear 
extensions. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68842 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

52 Queslett Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6PH 

Proposed single storey 
rear and first floor side 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
8th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68873 
 
Newton 

134 Newton Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6BT 

Proposed two 4 bedroom 
detached dwellings 
(previous application 
DC/22/67155). 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
24th January 
2024 

    

Page 129



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68882 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

Victoria Inn 
32 Lyng Lane 
West Bromwich 
B70 7RP 

Proposed external 
rendering to all 
elevations. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
29th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68883 
 
Oldbury 

26-28 Birmingham 
Street 
Oldbury 
 

Proposed change of use 
from offices to 1 No. 
retail unit at ground floor 
and 2 No. self-contained 
flats with work spaces to 
ground floor rear and first 
floor. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
22nd January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68915 
 
Rowley 

44A Garratts Lane 
Cradley Heath 
B64 5RG 

Demolition of existing 
building and proposed 
car park with palisade 
fencing and sliding gate. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
2nd February 
2024 

    

DC/23/68932 
 
Tividale 

4 Stokesay Close 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
B69 1XG 

Proposed single storey 
side and rear extension 
with raised patio, 
retaining walls and steps 
to rear. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
2nd February 
2024 

    

DC/23/68941 
 
Rowley 

49 Best Street 
Cradley Heath 
B64 5PA 

Proposed raising of roof 
height to existing single 
storey rear elevation, 
single storey rear infill 
extension and 
fenestration alterations. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
5th February 
2024 

    

Page 130



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68691 
 
Oldbury 

Shri Venkateswara 
Balaji Temple UK 
101 Dudley Road 
East 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
B69 3DU 

Proposed two storey 
detached dining hall with 
external staircase, 
fenced plant compound 
and landscaping. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
5th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/6872A 
 
Blackheath 

Land At 
Horner Way 
Rowley Regis 
 

Proposed 3 No. 
internally-illuminated 
fascia signs, 1 No. non-
illuminated fascia sign, 1 
No. internally-illuminated 
projecting sign, 1 No. 
internally-illuminated 
double-sided pole sign, 1 
No. Single & 1 No. Triple 
Digital Menu, 1 No. 
internally-illuminated 
double-sided cantilever 
LH post height barrier 
sign, 2 No. non 
illuminated banner 
frames, 1 No. internally-
illuminated freestanding 
sign, 1 No. non-
illuminated freestanding 
sign and 3 No. non-
illuminated panel 
(lamppost) signs in 
connection with the use 
of the site as a coffee 
shop with drive through 
facility (Revision to 
approved planning 
permission 
DC/23/6840A). 

Grant 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

Page 131



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68795 
 
Blackheath 

Land At 
Horner Way 
Rowley Regis 
 

Proposed variation of 
condition 1 of planning 
permission DC/22/67796 
(Proposed single storey 
detached coffee shop 
with drive thru, new 
access, parking, 
enclosed bin area, 
landscaping and 
associated infrastructure) 
Reposition of coffee shop 
and drive thru and 
amendment to car park 
layout and vehicular 
route. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
21st December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68809 
 
Rowley 

Four Ways Inn 
Portway Hill 
Rowley Regis 
B65 9DD 

Proposed raised 
detached platform with 
helicopter display on first 
floor with seating for 10 
No. customers, 2 No. 
external staircases and 
balustrades to upper 
deck and seating for 60 
No. customers within the 
lower deck in rear 
garden. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
21st December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68847 
 
Old Warley 

Land To The Rear 
Of 2, 4 & 10 Hadzor 
Road 
Oldbury 
B68 9LA 

Proposed detached two 
storey dwelling. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
10th January 
2024 

    

Page 132



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68865 
 
Old Warley 

Lightwoods Primary 
School 
Wolverhampton 
Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0LP 

Proposed 155 No. solar 
panel modules on 2 No. 
existing pitched roof 
buildings and 1 No. 
existing flat roof building. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
19th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68870 
 
Blackheath 

61 Perry Park Road 
Rowley Regis 
B65 0BT 

Proposed single storey 
side extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
21st December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68887 
 
Oldbury 

81 Theodore Close 
Oldbury 
B69 3EF 

Proposed change of use 
from dwelling to 
residential care home for 
up to 2 No. young people 
aged 7 to 17 years old 
(Lawful Development 
Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
22nd January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68919 
 
Soho & Victoria 

8 Messenger Road 
Smethwick 
B66 3DX 

Retrospective change of 
use from shop to 1 No. 2 
bedroom self-contained 
flat with fenestration 
alterations to front/side. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Retrospective 
Consent 
 
24th January 
2024 

    

Page 133



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68922 
 
St Pauls 

Land Rear Of 1 
Chance Drive 
Smethwick 
B66 1TU 

Proposed variation of 
condition 1 of planning 
permission DC/22/66779 
(Proposed new care 
home facility and creation 
of new access, car 
parking, boundary 
fencing, bin store 
enclosure and 
landscaping) Proposed 
internal alterations to 
create an additional flat 
with 7 No. flats in total, 
air source heat pumps 
with acoustic fencing to 
rear, new front boundary 
wall, front canopy and 
fenestration alterations. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
5th February 
2024 

    

DC/23/68589 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

54 Overend Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 6AT 

Proposed two storey side 
and single and two storey 
rear extensions. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
5th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68667 
 
Tipton Green 

1A Sedgley Road 
East 
Tipton 
DY4 8XA 

Proposed two storey side 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
29th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68739 
 
Friar Park 

The Priory Primary 
School 
Dorsett Road 
Wednesbury 
WS10 0JG 

Proposed 2 No. 10m high 
wooden poles at rear 
entrance to upgrade the 
broadband. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

Page 134



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68804 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

Unit 15 
Potters Lane 
Wednesbury 
WS10 0AT 

Proposed change of use 
from 
industrial/warehouse unit 
to gymnastics academy. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
21st December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68835 
 
Friar Park 

18 Norfolk Drive 
Wednesbury 
WS10 0SW 

Proposed single storey 
side extension. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
2nd January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68840 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

93 Bustleholme 
Lane 
West Bromwich 
B71 3AT 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
23rd January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68848 
 
Great Bridge 

St Lukes Centre 
New Road 
Tipton 
DY4 7BX 

Proposed change of use 
of the existing first floor 
to HMO with 2 No. 
proposed windows at 
rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68849 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

36 Maple Drive 
Walsall 
WS5 4JJ 

Proposed single and two 
storey side extension. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
16th January 
2024 

    

Page 135



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68861 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

45 York Crescent 
West Bromwich 
B70 0JU 

Proposed loft conversion 
with dormer window to 
side (Lawful 
Development Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
5th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68874 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

69 Roebuck Lane 
West Bromwich 
B70 6QP 

Proposed first floor 
side/rear extension, 
raising of roof height of 
existing single storey 
side elevation, single 
storey front/side 
extension and canopy to 
front. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
12th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68872 
 
Hateley Heath 

19 Haig Street 
West Bromwich 
B71 1ES 

Proposed single storey 
side extension. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
19th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68878 
 
Newton 

44 James Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5ES 

Single storey rear 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
31st January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68897 
 
Friar Park 

64 Moor Street 
Wednesbury 
WS10 0QU 

Proposed level access 
platform lift with retaining 
walls and handrails to 
front. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

Page 136



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68886 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

42 Bagnall Street 
Ocker Hill 
Tipton 
DY4 0EF 

Proposed single storey 
side/rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
19th January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02566 
 
Hateley Heath 

98 Princess Grove 
West Bromwich 
B71 2DS 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 3.60m L x 
3.49m H (2.56m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
16th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68895 
 
Princes End 

99 And 101 Gospel 
Oak Road 
Tipton 
DY4 0DN 

Retention of boundary 
wall. 

Grant 
Retrospective 
Permission 
 
29th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68906 
 
Soho & Victoria 

Units 1-3 
Halberton Street 
Smethwick 
B66 2QP 

Proposed variation of 
condition 1 of planning 
permission DC/22/67199 
(Proposed single storey 
side extension to existing 
unit and raising of roof 
height) Revised 
symmetrical roof 
structure, internal 
alterations and 
enlargement to 1 No. 
front roller shutter. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
26th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68924 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

32 - 36 Carters 
Green 
West Bromwich 
B70 9LW 

Retention of two storey 
rear extension, extension 
to internal mezzanine 
floor and canopy to front. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
2nd February 
2024 

    

Page 137



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

PD/23/02574 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

Units 1 And 2 
Cliff Drive 
Tipton 
DY4 0PZ 

Proposed solar PV 
mounted across 7 
pitched roofs, together 
with all associated works, 
equipment and 
necessary infrastructure. 

P D Solar 
Panels Required 
and Granted 
 
26th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68929 
 
Tipton Green 

25 Kirkham Way 
Tipton 
DY4 8TW 

Proposed first floor rear 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
2nd February 
2024 

    

PD/23/02580 
 
Newton 

80 Tanhouse 
Avenue 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5AG 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.00m L x 
2.85m H (2.85m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02581 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

106 Oldbury Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 9DZ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.50m H (2.40m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02583 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

5 Ida Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 6EQ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.50m L x 
2.95m H (2.75m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
19th January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02584 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

38 Windsor Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 2NT 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.9m L x 
2.9m H (2.9m to eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

Page 138



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

    

DC/23/68701 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

Riddins Tavern 
33 Mossvale Close 
Cradley Heath 
B64 6DP 

Proposed change of use 
from public house to 5 
No. self-contained flats 
with two storey rear 
extension, rear dormer 
window and detached 
annex to rear with 
additional 1 No. self-
contained flat and cycle 
shelter. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
22nd December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68810 
 
Oldbury 

18 Roway Lane 
Oldbury 
B69 3EG 

Proposed change of use 
from 6 No. bedroom 
HMO (house in multiple 
occupation) to children's 
residential home for up to 
maximum 3 No. young 
people (Lawful 
Development Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
21st December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68817 
 
Abbey 

Hagley Road 
Service Station 
477 Hagley Road 
Smethwick 
B66 4AU 

Demolition of existing jet 
wash and proposed 2 
No. charging bays with 1 
No. EV charger, canopy 
with internal lighting, 
detached LV Panel/GRP 
enclosure and associated 
forecourt works. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
21st December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68805 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

129A Vicarage Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 1AE 

Proposed new garage to 
rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
19th December 
2023 

    

Page 139



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/6874A 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

Site Of Former 
Shaftesbury House 
High Street 
West Bromwich 
 

Proposed 3 No. non-
illuminated fascia signs. 

Grant 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
24th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68900 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

85 Walsall Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 3HH 

Proposed two storey side 
and rear extension. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
22nd January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68910 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

Midland House 
Bell Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 7BT 

Retention of use as 
General industrial (Class 
B2) (Lawful Development 
Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
24th January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02576 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

388 High Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 9LB 

Proposed conversion of 
first and second floor 
offices into 3 No. flats. 

P D Change of 
Use required 
and granted 
 
24th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68620 
 
St Pauls 

213 St Pauls Road 
Smethwick 
B66 1QS 

Proposed single and two 
storey rear/side 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
22nd December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68791 
 
Soho & Victoria 

Windmill Centre 
Multiuse Games 
Area 
Corner Of Soho 
Close/Oakfield Road 
Smethwick 
 

Proposed refurbishment 
of existing multi use 
games area (MUGA) with 
new LED lighting system 
on 4 No. columns, 3m 
and 4m high fencing and 
storage container. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
26th January 
2024 

    

Page 140



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68796 
 
Soho & Victoria 

71 Edgbaston Road 
Smethwick 
B66 4LF 

Retention of external wall 
insulation and render to 
front/side/rear of 
property. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
5th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68799 
 
Old Warley 

34 Hadzor Road 
Oldbury 
B68 9LA 

Demolition of existing 
garage and proposed 
single storey side and 
rear extension, raised 
patio with storage area 
below, steps and 
balustrades to rear. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68800 
 
Rowley 

46 Hanover Road 
Rowley Regis 
B65 9DZ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension, 
conservatory and front 
porch. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
22nd December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68829 
 
Tividale 

22 Speakers Close 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
B69 1UX 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
10th January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02556 
 
Soho & Victoria 

Ash And Lacy 
Limited 
Alma Street 
Smethwick 
B66 2RL 

Proposed installation of 
photovoltaic solar panels 
to existing pitched factory 
roof. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
3rd January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68863 
 
Langley 

329 Birchfield Lane 
Oldbury 
B69 1AG 

Proposed driveway and 
dropped kerb at front. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

Page 141



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

PD/23/02563 
 
Langley 

29 Oakdale Road 
Oldbury 
B68 8AZ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.00m H (2.725m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

PD/23/02565 
 
Abbey 

13 Beakes Road 
Smethwick 
B67 5RS 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.50m L x 
4.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68877 
 
Smethwick 

7 Green Street 
Smethwick 
B67 7BX 

Proposed loft conversion 
and rear dormer window 
(Lawful Development 
Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68889 
 
Tividale 

84 Poplar Avenue 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
B69 1RW 

Proposed two storey side 
and single storey 
front/side/rear 
extensions, front canopy 
and detached outbuilding 
in rear garden. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68898 
 
Bristnall 

22 Elizabeth 
Crescent 
Oldbury 
B68 9PS 

Proposed single storey 
side and rear extension 
and front porch. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
22nd January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02573 
 
Bristnall 

232 Bristnall Hall 
Road 
Oldbury 
B68 9NJ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring:  5.95m L x 
3.0m H (3.0m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
8th January 
2024 

    

Page 142



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/6879A 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

Haden House 
Waterfall Lane 
Trading Estate 
Cradley Heath 
B64 6PU 

Proposed 1 No. 
externally illuminated 
fascia sign and 1 No. 
non-illuminated fascia 
sign. 

Grant 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
24th January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02582 
 
St Pauls 

33 Cambridge Road 
Smethwick 
B66 2HS 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.0m L x 
3.9m H (2.8m to eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68605 
 
Langley 

77 Pool Lane 
Oldbury 
B69 4QX 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension (renewal 
of planning permission 
DC/08/49089). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
5th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68682 
 
Rowley 

19 Blackberry Lane 
Rowley Regis 
B65 8NF 

Proposed two storey side 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
22nd December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68724 
 
Tividale 

85 Newbury Lane 
Oldbury 
B69 1HE 

Proposed two storey 
side/rear and single 
storey front/side 
extensions and pitched 
roof to existing front 
porch. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
24th January 
2024 

    

Page 143



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68758 
 
Soho & Victoria 

5 Boniface Road 
Smethwick 
B66 4SZ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
26th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68816 
 
Smethwick 

7 Bartleet Road 
Smethwick 
B67 7RD 

Proposed single storey 
side extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
12th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68820 
 
St Pauls 

120 Lewisham Road 
Smethwick 
B66 2DH 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
22nd December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68825 
 
Old Warley 

8 Warley Croft 
Oldbury 
B68 9JQ 

Proposed two storey side 
and single storey rear 
extensions and front 
canopy extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
2nd January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68828 
 
Blackheath 

113 Birmingham 
Road 
Rowley Regis 
B65 9AX 

Proposed two storey rear 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
22nd December 
2023 

    

Page 144



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68837 
 
Oldbury 

32 Callaghan Drive 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
B69 3NG 

Proposed conservatory 
to rear (Lawful 
Development Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
22nd December 
2023 

    

PD/23/02554 
 
St Pauls 

211 Tat Bank Road 
Oldbury 
B68 8NP 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.963m L x 
3.33m H (2.19m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
19th December 
2023 

    

PD/23/02555 
 
Abbey 

91 Milcote Road 
Smethwick 
B67 5BG 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.0m L x 
4.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68841 
 
St Pauls 

61 Mafeking Road 
Smethwick 
B66 2BT 

Proposed single storey 
side extension. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
5th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68851 
 
Rowley 

18 Hickmans 
Avenue 
Cradley Heath 
B64 5ND 

Proposed two storey side 
and rear and single 
storey front/side/rear 
extensions. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
11th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68859 
 
Bristnall 

48 Bristnall Hall 
Lane 
Oldbury 
B68 9PB 

Proposed two and single 
storey rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
18th January 
2024 

Page 145



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

    

PD/23/02562 
 
Abbey 

67 Devon Road 
Smethwick 
B67 5EL 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.00m L x 
3.705m H (2.995m to 
eaves). 

Permitted 
Development 
Refused 
 
12th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68864 
 
Old Warley 

32 Kenilworth Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0ND 

Proposed single and two 
storey rear extension, hip 
to gable roof extension, 
loft conversion, rear 
dormer window and 
rendering to front, side 
and rear (Revision to 
refused applications 
DC/22/67715 and 
DC/23/68038). 

Refuse 
permission 
 
23rd January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02564 
 
Blackheath 

118 Ross 
Rowley Regis 
B65 8DZ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.0m L x 
3.0m H (2.8m to eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

PD/23/02568 
 
St Pauls 

215 St Pauls Road 
Smethwick 
B66 1QS 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.60m H (2.70m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
5th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68904 
 
St Pauls 

94 White Road 
Smethwick 
B67 7PQ 

Proposed outbuilding in 
rear garden. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
26th January 
2024 

    

Page 146



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

PD/23/02571 
 
St Pauls 

72 Bertram Road 
Smethwick 
B67 7NZ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.2m L x 
3.7m H (2.7m to eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
5th January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02577 
 
Tividale 

12 Grace Road 
Oldbury 
B69 1LW 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.0m L x 
4.0m H (2.40m to eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02579 
 
Smethwick 

15 Laburnum 
Avenue 
Smethwick 
B67 6PL 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.5m L x 
4.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

PD/24/02592 
 
Tividale 

89 Ivy House Road 
Oldbury 
B69 1HQ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
5th February 
2024 

    

PD/24/02598 
 
Bristnall 

25 Highbury Road 
Oldbury 
B68 8QF 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.90m H (2.90m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
5th February 
2024 

    

DC/23/68891 
 
Abbey 

Lightwoods House 
2 Adkins Lane 
Smethwick 
 

Proposed creation of an 
internal archway and bar 
area within the tea room 
of Lightwoods House 
(Listed Building 
Consent). 

Grant 
Conditional 
Listed 
BuildingConsent 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

Page 147



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68655 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

47 Peak House 
Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 7RY 

Proposed single storey 
side extension, single 
and two storey front and 
rear extensions with 
extension to porch, loft 
conversion, rear dormer, 
and roof light to front. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
10th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68665 
 
Newton 

252 Appleton 
Avenue 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5QD 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension, and 
garage to rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
12th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68680 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

112 Cherry Tree 
Avenue 
Walsall 
WS5 4JL 

Proposed garage 
conversion with 
extension to rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
22nd December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68713 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

21 George Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6LG 

Proposed single storey 
rear/side extension 
(amendment to previous 
application 
DC/23/68305). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
19th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68764 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

4 Turton Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 8LA 

Proposed two storey 
side/rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

Page 148



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68769 
 
Great Bridge 

2 Hempole Lane 
Tipton 
DY4 0HQ 

Proposed single storey 
rear and front extensions 
and canopy to rear. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
19th December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68790 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

11 Perry Place 
West Bromwich 
B70 0PE 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension, front 
porch, and garage 
conversion. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68811 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

10 Chester Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 2PE 

Retention of outbuilding 
in rear garden. 

Grant 
Retrospective 
Permission 
 
22nd December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68813 
 
Great Bridge 

34 Hudson Road 
Tipton 
DY4 7PY 

Retention of single storey 
side and rear extension. 

Grant 
Retrospective 
Permission 
 
22nd December 
2023 

    

PD/23/02553 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

77 Greswold Street 
West Bromwich 
B71 1NS 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.50m L x 
4.00m H (2.60m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
19th December 
2023 

    

Page 149



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68836 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

55 Delville Road 
Wednesbury 
WS10 9EA 

Proposed demolition and 
replacement of existing 
single storey rear 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
24th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68833 
 
Newton 

27 Greenfield Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5AR 

Proposed level access 
platform, ramp, retaining 
wall, steps and handrails 
to front of property. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
5th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68845 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

41 Ingestre Drive 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6QW 

Retention of garage 
extension with front 
extension. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Retrospective 
Consent 
 
24th January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02559 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

110 Wood Lane 
West Bromwich 
B70 9PX 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.95m H (2.90m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68850 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

8 Park Street 
Wednesbury 
WS10 9EE 

Proposed single storey 
rear/side and front 
extension, and tiled 
canopy to front. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

Page 150



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68853 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

3 Lakeside Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 0PN 

Proposed single and two 
storey side and rear 
extensions and porch to 
front. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68856 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

56 Lime Road 
Wednesbury 
WS10 9NG 

Proposed single storey 
side/rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
5th January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02561 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

96 Dawes Avenue 
West Bromwich 
B70 7LS 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.0m L x 
4.0m H (3.0m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68890 
 
Hateley Heath 

17 Caldwell Street 
West Bromwich 
B71 2DN 

Proposed first floor rear 
extension (Revision to 
approved planning 
permission 
DC/23/68463). 

Refuse 
permission 
 
19th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68914 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

23 Wood Green 
Road 
Wednesbury 
WS10 9AX 

Proposed single storey 
rear/side extension. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
26th January 
2024 

    

PD/23/02575 
 
Newton 

48 Langdale Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5RB 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
4.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
16th January 
2024 

    

Page 151



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

PD/23/02587 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

4 Sheldon Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 3JB 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.0m L x 
3.0m H (3.0m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
26th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68676 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

Land Adjacent Tame 
Valley Canal 
Golds Hill Way 
Tipton 
 

Proposed SUDS scheme 
for the approved Storage 
Facility (planning 
application reference: 
DC/21/65690). 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
5th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68748 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

Dalair Limited 
Birmingham 
Technical Centre 
Blakeley Wood Road 
Tipton 
DY4 0QA 

Proposed 8 no. additional 
car parking spaces. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
20th December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68822 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

Land Adjacent To 
Q3 Academy 
Wilderness Lane 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 7SD 

Proposed 150 dwellings, 
a countryside park and 
associated works 
(Outline application for 
access only). 

Refuse 
permission 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68824 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

3 Rooth Street 
Wednesbury 
WS10 9QP 

Retention of use from a 
dwelling house (Class 
C3) to serviced 
accommodation (Class 
C1). 

Grant 
Temporary 
Retrospective 
Consent 
 
10th January 
2024 

    

Page 152



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

PD/23/02560 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

Canal Arm 
Underbridge Near 
To Footbridge Over 
New Main Line 
Bromford Junction 
Birmingham Canal 
Birmingham Level 

Proposed works to 2 no. 
decks at Johnson & Co 
canal arm underbridge 
which is located at 5 
miles and 251 yards on 
the RBS2 line near 
Oldbury. 

Prior Approval 
Required Grant 
Conditions 
 
10th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/6877A 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

Former Delta House 
Greets Green Road 
West Bromwich 
 

Proposed 2 no. non-
illuminated fascia signs. 

Grant 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
22nd December 
2023 

    

DC/23/68912 
 
Great Bridge 

2 Gordon Drive 
Tipton 
DY4 7LZ 

Proposed single and two 
storey side extension, 
and tiled canopy to front. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
17th January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68920 
 
Princes End 

24 Elizabeth Walk 
Tipton 
DY4 0AZ 

Proposed garage 
conversion, and single 
storey side/rear 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
31st January 
2024 

    

DC/23/68944 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

Land Adjacent To 
Q3 Academy 
Wilderness Lane 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 7SD 

Request for a screening 
opinion in respect of 
whether an 
Environmental Impact 
Assessment (EIA) is 
required. 

Screening 
opinion - EIA not 
required 
 
21st December 
2023 

    

PD/23/02590 
 
Hateley Heath 

60 Jubilee Street 
West Bromwich 
B71 2DQ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.00m H (2.40m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
26th January 
2024 

    

Page 153



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

PD/24/02594 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

212 Greets Green 
Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 9EP 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.00m H (2.80m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
5th February 
2024 

    

 

Page 154


	Agenda
	1 Apologies for Absence
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 Planning Application - DC/23/68498 - 2A Franchise Street, Wednesbury, WS10 9RE
	1. report - dc-23-68498
	2. AMENDED_EXISTING_LOCATION_PLAN.-1308546
	3. AMENDED_PROPOSED_SITE_PLAN_INC.PARKING-1305041
	4. AMENDED_PROPOSED_SECOND_FLOOR_PLAN-1300557
	5. PROPOSED_REAR_ELEVATION_PLAN-1289251
	6. AMENDED_PROPOSED_ELEVATIONS.-1305042
	7. AMENDED_PROPOSED_GROUND___FIRST_FLOOR_PLANS.-1305043

	5 Planning Application - DC/23/68797 - 41 Warwick Road, Oldbury, B68 0NE
	1. report dc-23-68797
	2. LOCATION PLAN
	3. Block Plan
	4. As built floor and elevations plan

	6 Planning Application - DC/23/68823 - Land To The Rear of 22 to 56 Francis Ward Close, West Bromwich
	1. report dc-23-68823 
	2. Location plan
	3. Site plan
	4. Site sections
	5. House types Plots 1-2
	6. House types Plots 3-4

	7 Planning Application - DC/23/68927 - Land Off Titford Road/ To The Rear Of Asda Wolverhampton Road, Oldbury
	1. Report - dc-23-68927
	1300898-Drawing-PROPOSED STREETSCENE PLAN
	Titford Road-PL02- Rev M
	Sheets and Views
	PL02



	8 Proposed Site Visits
	1. Site visit report 21.2.24
	2. LOCATION PLAN - 68374
	3. Site layout - 68374
	4. Location Plan - 68946
	P06 Block and Location Plan

	5. Site Plan - 68948
	Sheets and Views
	02P_SITE PLAN


	6. Location Plan -68948

	9 Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate
	1. Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate - 21.1.24
	21st February 2024
	2 Reasons for Recommendations
	3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?
	5 Alternative Options
	6 Implications

	2. Decision 3328400 - allowed

	10 Applications Determined Under Delegated Powers
	1. Report Applications Determined Under Delegaed Powers
	2. Deligated List 19.12.23 - 06.02.24
	SANDWELL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
	Decision and Date
	Site Address





